
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 
 
 
 


 


Introduction	


The timely deposit and investment of public funds is an important and integral part of any cash 
management program. In order to maximize cash available for investments, all city departments 
shall remit funds at least weekly to the Finance Department’s office. 


This Investment Policy is intended for the use and guidance of the designated officials with 
investment authority.  


Delegation	of	Authority	


Pursuant to Section 66.0603(2), the Common Council has the authority to delegate investment 
authority to invest and reinvest money of the city, to sell or exchange securities so purchased and 
to provide for the safekeeping of such securities. Responsibility for the operation of the 
investment program is hereby delegated to the Investment Team, which consists of the Director 
of Finance/Comptroller, City Treasurer and Utilities Finance Manager, and shall act in 
accordance with established written procedures and internal controls for the operation of the 
investment program consistent with this investment policy.  


At least two of the three members of the team must agree before any decision can be made.  


This policy shall be reviewed annually by the Finance Committee, and recommendations to 
amend the existing ordinance shall be presented to the Common Council for its consideration.  


Statement	of	Purpose	


The purpose of this Investment Policy is to establish guidelines for investments which are broad 
enough to allow the Investment Team to function properly within the parameters of its 
responsibility and authority. It is also intended to be specific enough to establish a prudent set 
of basic procedures to assure that investment assets are adequately safeguarded. It assures that 
the fundamental principle concerning any investment program involving public moneys has four 
basic ingredients: legality, safety, liquidity and yield.  


General	Objectives	


The primary objective, in priority order, of investment activities shall be: 


1. Safety – The safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. 
Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of 
capital in the overall portfolio. The goal will be to mitigate 


•  credit risk (risk of loss due to the failure of the security issuer or backer), and 
•  interest rate risk (risk that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fail 


due to change in the market interest rates). 


2. Liquidity	 -- The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all 
operating requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. 


3. Return -- The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a 
market rate of return through budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the 
investment risk constraints of safety and liquidity needs. 


 
	


City	of	Stoughton,	Wisconsin	
Investment	Policy	







Standards	of	Care	


1. Prudence - The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the 
“prudent person rule” standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an 
overall portfolio. 


a. Prudent Person Rule-Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under 
circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and 
intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but 
for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the 
probable income to be derived. 


2. Ethics	and	Conflicts	of	Interest	-- Investment officials and employee involved in the 
investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with 
the proper execution and management of the investment program, or that could impair 
their ability to make impartial decisions. 


a. Investment Officials and employees involved in the investment process shall further 
disclose and personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the 
performance of the investment portfolio. 


3. Relief	of	liability -- Notwithstanding any other provisions of law, the Investment Team 
members who deposits public money in any authorized public depository, in compliance 
with Wisconsin Statutes Sec. 34.05 is, under the provisions of Wisconsin Statutes Sec. 
34.06, relieved of any liability for any loss of public monies which results from the failure 
of any public depository to repay the public depository the full amount of its deposits, 
thus causing a loss as defined in Wisconsin Statutes Sec. 34.01(2). 


Overall	Responsibility	for	Cash	Management	and	Investments	


Effective cash management involves controlling cash from the time it is received until it is 
disbursed. It requires the availability of accurate information on a timely basis.  Both the City 
Treasurer and the Utilities Finance Manager shall be delegated the day-to-day responsibility for 
the overall financial operation to determine cash availability and needs. 


1. Internal	Controls	 ‐‐	The investment team shall establish a system of internal controls 
which shall be reviewed by the independent auditor on an annual basis. The controls shall 
be designed to prevent loss of public funds due to fraud, error and misrepresentation by 
another party or imprudent actions by an employee or employees of the City.  


2. Investment	 ‐‐	 The Investment Team may purchase securities that are permissible 
investments from money in the Investment Team’s custody, which is not required for the 
immediate needs of the City, as the Investment Team deems wise and expedient. The 
investment activity of Wisconsin public funds is governed by Section 66.0603(1m) and 
other sections of the Wisconsin Statutes as follows: “A county, city, village, town, school 
district, drainage district, technical college district or other governing board other than a local 
professional football stadium district board created under subch. IV of ch. 229, may invest 
any of its funds . . .” in accordance with Section 66.0603(lm). 


3. 	Reporting -- The Finance Committee and Utilities Committee shall consult quarterly with the 
Investment Team regarding such investments. The Investment Team shall provide the 
Committee with a quarterly detailed list of all the investment portfolio holdings.  


The Investment Team shall communicate with financial institutions and/or investment 
advisors and avail itself of other financial information on current or pending market 







conditions in making its decision on rates and maturities as well as the securities to be 
purchased. In making all investment decisions, the Investment Team shall endeavor to 
achieve the overall investment objectives of the City.  


4. Redemption	-- The Investment Team shall periodically redeem the securities in which City 
money has been invested pursuant to section (2) Investment so that the proceeds may be 
applied to the purpose for which the original purchase money was designated or placed in 
the City Treasury.  


5. Deposits	 --	Any federal or state-chartered bank or credit union approved by the Common 
Council at their annual organizational meeting shall be the working financial institutions. The 
Director of Finance/Comptroller and Utilities Finance Manager have the authority to add 
working financial institutions with notice to the Finance Committee within 30 days after 
adding such institution 


6. Investment	Advisors	--	The Investment Team may utilize investment advisors/brokers as 
approved by the City of Stoughton Finance Committee or Utilities Committee. 


7. Safekeeping	 --	 For portfolios with outside investment advisors, the City will use an 
independent third-party custodian, in order to segregate the functions of choosing 
investments from physical custody and record-keeping. The custodian shall keep 
possession of all funds and securities; collect income and the proceeds of sales, maturities 
and redemptions; transact purchases; and distribute funds as directed by the City. 


8. Post	issue	debt	compliance – This policy is not to conflict with either the terms of the debt 
obligation or Internal Revenue Service arbitrage rules for borrowed money proceeds. 


Accounts	and	Records	


It shall be the responsibility of the designated Investment Team to establish sufficient records 
and accounts to: detail each investment as to purchase date, cost, maturity date, yield and 
market value, 


 provide any necessary internal controls, 
 any other records that may be required to accurately reflect all investment 


transactions. 
 
Collateralization	of	Funds	
With the passage of Wisconsin Act 25, effective August 1, 1985, there is no longer the overall 
guarantee of public funds by the State. In effect, Act 25 abolished the state deposit guarantee fund. 
It will continue to pledge general purpose revenues under Wis. Stats., 20.144(1)(a), for the 
payment of losses of public deposits until the balance of the appropriation is exhausted. 
However, no payment for a loss in excess of $400,000 for any one public depositor in any 
individual public depository may be made above current FDIC (Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation) levels for deposits in any one institution.  
 
Chapter 34.07 as amended provides that a surety bond or other security may be required of a 
given public depository for any public deposit that exceeds the $400,000 amount guaranteed by 
the State of Wisconsin. 


The City of Stoughton requires collateralization of any deposits exceeding the amounts guaranteed by 
the State of Wisconsin and the FDIC for the primary checking accounts for both the City of Stoughton 
and Stoughton Utilities as well as the payroll checking account during the months of December through 
February due to the large of amounts of fiduciary property tax collection during those months.  







For collateralization, Certificates of Deposits or other investments exceeding the amounts 
currently insured by the State and the FDIC shall be fully secured by obligations of the United 
States Government or its agencies. Such securities shall be delivered to the City or held by an 
independent third party chosen by the City. Substitution of collateral by the independent third 
party shall only be allowed with the written approval of the City’s Investment Team. The market 
value of the collateral shall at all times equal or exceed the principal amount of the certificate of 
deposit. Value of the collateral shall be monitored and market value shall be at or near the bid 
or closing price of the security as quoted in the Wall Street Journal or other recognized pricing 
source. The Investment Team shall be authorized to sign agreements with the Custodial Bank and 
sign for the receipt of any pledged securities. 
 
The City of Stoughton shall not require this collateral for any deposit that exceeds the amounts 
guaranteed by the State and the F.D.I.C for the other months of the year. The rationale for not 
requiring collateralization shall be to either maximize investment returns and/or reduce bank 
fees. The Finance Committee shall periodically review the need for collateralization.  


Responsibility for the administration of the foregoing rests with the Investment Team.  
 
Custodial	Related	Risks	 


1. Custodial credit risk for deposits, when collateralization is required.  
a. Definition: Risk that in the event of the failure of a depository financial 


institution, the City will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to 
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 


b. Related Policy: For those institutions which the City holds deposits and 
investments: 


i. Ensure that security interest in collateral pledged to secure deposits 
and investments are enforceable against the receiver of a failed 
financial institution via: 


1. An agreement in writing 
2. An agreement that was approved by the board of directors of 


the depository or its loan committee, and 
3. An agreement that has been continuously kept as an official 


record of the depository institution since the time of 
execution. 


 
ii. All pledged collateral shall be held at an independent third-party 


institution, and evidenced by a written agreement in an effort to 
satisfy the Uniform Commercial Code (UCC) requirement for control. 


 
2. Custodial credit risk 


a. Definition: Risk that in the event of the failure of a party to a transaction, the 
City will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities 
that are in the possession of an outside party.  


b. Related Policy: Accomplished through same policy as Custodial Credit Risk for 
Deposits as above. 


Eligible	Investments	


a. Authorized Investments. Subject to restrictions as may be imposed by law (Section 







66.0603(1m) of Wisconsin State Statutes), funds will only be invested in the following 
securities: 


1. U.S. Treasury Obligations and Government Agency Securities -- Obligations of the United 
States of America, its agencies and instrumentalities, provided that the payment of the 
principal and interest is fully guaranteed by the issuer. 


2. Certificates of Deposit -- Certificates of Deposit and other evidences of deposits from 
credit unions, banks, savings banks, trust companies or savings and loan associations 
which are authorized to transact business in the state, which time deposits mature in 
not more than one year. Any Certificate of Deposit invested in excess of the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation and State Deposit Guaranteed Fund insured amount of 
$500,000, whichever is less, are to be fully collateralized under the specific 
requirements above 


3. General Obligation Bonds or Securities -- General obligation bonds or securities of any 
county, city, drainage district, vocational, technical and adult education district, village, 
town or school district of the state. 
 


4. Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) funds administered by the State of Wisconsin 
Investment Board. 


 
5. Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative (WISC) funds administered by PMA Financial 


Network, LLC. 


6. Repurchase Agreements -- Investment agreements pursuant to which a federal or state 
credit union, federal or state savings and loan association, state bank, savings and trust 
company, mutual savings bank, or national bank in the State of Wisconsin agrees to 
repay funds advanced to it by the issuer, plus interest. Repurchase Agreements are to 
be secured by investment securities fully guaranteed by the U.S. Government. 


7. Open Ended Money Market Funds -- Restricted to investments permitted by Wisconsin 
Statute Section 66.0603(1m)(a)5, limited to a maximum average maturity of 120 
days or less.  This limit will not apply to either LGIP or WISC pool investments. 


8. Highly Rated Commercial Paper -- Commercial paper which may be tendered for a 
purchase at the option of the holder within not more than 270 days of the date acquired 
as permitted by Wisconsin Statute Section 66.0603(1m)(a)4. These securities must be 
rated in the highest or second highest rating category assigned by Standard & Poor’s 
Corporation, Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., or other similar nationally recognized 
rating agency or senior to or on parity with a security of the same issuer which has such 
a rating.  No more than five percent (5%) of the investment portfolio may be commercial 
paper from a single issuer. 


9. Out of State General Obligation Bonds or Securities -- General obligation bonds or 
securities of any county, city, drainage district, vocational, technical and adult education 
district, village, town or school district, if the bond or security has a maturity of seven 
years or less from the date on which it was acquired and, if the bond or security is rated 
in one of the two highest rating categories assigned by Standard & Poor’s Corporation, 
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., or other similar nationally recognized rating agency. 







10. Corporate Bonds or Securities. Any bond or security issued by a corporation which has 
a maturity of 7 years or less on the date on which it is acquired, and if that bond or 
security has a rating which is in the highest or 2nd highest rating category assigned by 
Standard & Poor's Corporation, Moody's Investors Service or other similar nationally 
recognized rating agency. No more than five percent (5%) of the investment portfolio 
shall be corporate securities from a single issuer. 


IMPORTANT NOTE: If the credit rating of a security is subsequently downgraded below 
the minimum rating level for a new investment of that security, the Investment Team 
shall evaluate the downgrade on a case-by-case basis, and if applicable, shall obtain the 
recommendation(s) of the assigned Investment Advisor in order to determine if the 
security should be held or sold. The Investment Team will apply the general objectives 
of safety, liquidity, yield and legality in order to make its decision. 


	
Firefighter’s	Pension	Fund	–	Fiduciary	Trust	Fund	
	
The City of Stoughton established a pension plan in 1911 for its volunteer firefighters.  As such, the 
irrevocable fiduciary trust for the Firefighter’s Pension Fund should have a long-term focus.   
 
According to the 2021/2022 actuarial report, the deferred inflows and deferred outflows have 
been amortized from 2017 through 2022 between 7.24 and 7.40 years.  Based upon the restrictions 
of the Wisconsin statutes, investments cannot exceed seven (7) years.   
 
Although annual revenue for fire dues from the State of Wisconsin covers the majority of 
expenditures, the Firefighter’s Pension Board requests maintaining two years of expenditures in 
cash and cash equivalents.  This amount is approximately $50,000 each year. 
 
In addition to the above allowed securities, the Firefighter’s Pension Fund shall strive to: 


a) Retain $100,000 in checking, LGIP pool accounts and/or WISC pool accounts. 
b) Invest 10% of the remaining available balance in eligible investments with maturities 


between 12 and 36 months from the purchase date. 
c) Invest 20% of the remaining available balance in eligible investments with maturities 


between 36 months and 60 months from the purchase date.  
d) Invest 70% of the remaining available balance in eligible investments with the maturities 


between 60 and 84 months from the purchase date. 


Performance	Standards/Evaluation	


The investment portfolio will be managed in accordance with the parameters specified within this 
policy. The portfolio should obtain a market average rate of return during a market environment 
of stable interest rates. A series of appropriate benchmarks shall be established against which 
portfolio performance shall be compared on a regular basis. The benchmarks shall be reflective 
of the actual securities being purchased and risks undertaken and the benchmarks shall have a 
similar duration and credit profile as the portfolio. In order to manage interest rate risk, the 
investment portfolio(s) shall be required to keep an effective duration, which is defined as the 
present value of the lifetime cash flows of the City of Stoughton’s investments, in close proximity to 
the assigned benchmark or less if economic conditions merit.  


Reports	


The Investment Team shall provide the Finance Committee and Utilities Committee monthly 
written reports on the general condition of the City’s cash and investments.   


The Investment Advisor shall provide a twelve-month (August 1 – July 31) written report to the 







Finance Committee and Utilities Committee on the City’s investment activity for the reporting 
period and recommendations for improvement to the City’s investment strategy for the next 
reporting period. The report shall be presented at the regular Finance Committee and Utilities 
Committee meetings in August to aid in the subsequent year budget preparation.  


 
 


Adopted INSERT DATE HERE – INSERT RESOLUTION NUMBER HERE 


Amended: 








    
600 South Fourth Street P.O. Box 383  
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383  


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886  


  


Date:   


  


May 16, 2023 


To:    David P. Ehlinger, CPA 


    


 


Stoughton Director of Finance & Comptroller 


From:   Brian R. Hoops   


 


 


Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director  


Subject: Items for a Future Stoughton Finance Committee Meeting Agenda  


The minutes from the May 15, 2023 meeting of the Stoughton Utilities Committee are enclosed.  Please 


include this item on the agenda of a future meeting of the Stoughton Finance Committee. 


Business: 


1. Revisions to the City of Stoughton Investment Policy  


 


Encl.  


cc:  David R. Erdman  


Chairman – Stoughton Utilities Committee  


Shannon M. Statz 


Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager 


 


Jill M. Weiss, P.E. 


 Stoughton Utilities Director  








DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, May 15, 2023 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  3 


Stoughton Electric Utility Annual Report filed with the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin:  


Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the Stoughton Electric Utility Annual Report filed with the Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin.  Discussion followed. 


Stoughton Water Utility Annual Report filed with the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin:  Stoughton 


Utilities staff presented and discussed the Stoughton Water Utility Annual Report filed with the Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin.  Discussion followed. 


Authorizing the Partial Release of a Platted Public Utility Easement on Lot 141 of John Nygaard’s Virgin 


Lake Estates (2108 Wood View Dr), recorded as Document No. 5618013, Dane County Registry:  


Stoughton Utilities staff discussed a customer request for a partial release of a platted public utility easement.  


Staff informed the committee that Stoughton Utilities does not have any existing utility infrastructure located in 


the easement and that there were no plans to utilize the easement in the future.  Staff noted that the Dane County 


Registration Document No. 5592538 included on the meeting notice was incorrect and should be Document No. 


5618013.  Staff also noted that following attorney review it was recommended that an illustration of the easement 


to be released should be included in the documentation prior to approval by the Common Council.  Discussion 


followed.   


Motion by Chenoweth, seconded by Hirsch, to authorize the partial release of a platted public utility easement 


on Lot 141 of John Nygaard’s Virgin Lake Estates (2108 Wood View Dr), recorded as Document No. 5618013, 


Dane County Registry, and recommend approval of the partial easement release following the addition of an 


illustration of the easement to be released to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 


5 to 0.   


Wastewater 2022 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR):  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and 


discussed the 2022 CMAR.  Staff informed the committee that annual submittal of an electronic CMAR form 


(eCMAR) is required to be completed no later than June 30.  Staff further informed the committee that there were 


no concerns noted in the CMAR.  Discussion followed.  


Motion by Payton, seconded by Jenson, to approve the 2022 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report and 


recommend the approval and adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council at 


their May 23, 2023 meeting.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0. 


Revisions to the City of Stoughton Investment Policy:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed a 


proposed policy that was drafted by City of Stoughton staff with input and review from Stoughton Utilities staff.  


Staff explained the proposed policy would replace procedures currently specified in the Stoughton code of 


ordinances and how the proposed policy would impact future new investments as well as the information that 


would be presented to the Utilities Committee at upcoming meetings.  Discussion followed.   


Motion by Jenson, seconded by Payton, to approve the revised City of Stoughton Investment Policy and 


recommend approval to the Stoughton Finance Committee and Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried 


4 to 1 with Chenoweth voting No. 


Utilities Committee Future Agenda Items:  Stoughton Utilities staff informed the committee that the annual 


water Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) will be presented at the June meeting.  Committee members 


requested that a comparison of Stoughton Utilities electric rates with the rates of neighboring investor-owned 


utilities be provided at an upcoming meeting, and that a tour of the wastewater treatment facility be offered prior 



bhoops

Highlight







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:   
  


May 9, 2023 


To:    
  


Stoughton Utilities Committee  


From:   Shannon M. Statz 


Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager  


Jill M. Weiss, P.E.  


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:  City of Stoughton Investment Policy Update  


Following a review of the current City of Stoughton Investment Policy by Director of Finance/Comptroller 


Ehlinger, it was determined that the current policy is not in compliance with sections of the Wisconsin 


State Statutes. In addition, some aspects of the policy are not being followed or do not provide enough 


information. Therefore, we are looking to adopt a new policy that addresses these weaknesses and sets 


forth new practices. 


Sections of the policy have been added or amended to comply with state statutes and procedures. Notable 


operational changes include: 


1. This updated policy creates an Investment Team, consisting of the Director of 


Finance/Comptroller, City Treasurer, and Utilities Finance Manager.  The team will be responsible 


for the operation of all investment activities. To make financial investment decisions, there should 


be two of the three members in agreement. 


2. Quarterly, the Investment Team will provide the Finance Committee and Utilities Committee a 


summary report of the City’s/Utility’s investment portfolio holdings. 


3. The Director of Finance/Comptroller and Utilities Finance Manager are granted authority to add 


financial institutions as needed and will notify the Finance Committee within 30 days of said 


action. 


4. The City’s/Utility’s investment advisor will provide an annual report to the Finance Committee 


and Utilities Committee noting the period’s investment activity and recommendation(s) for 


improvement. Stoughton Utilities is not currently working actively with an investment advisor and 


has previously used an advisor as needed when considering new investments. We will most likely 


use the same advisor as City staff.  


We are requesting that the Stoughton Utilities Committee review and approved the revised City of 


Stoughton Investment Policy and recommend approval to the Stoughton Finance Committee and 


Stoughton Common Council.  It is planned to be presented to the Stoughton Finance Committee on June 


13, 2023 and to the Common Council for a first reading on June 27, 2023 












 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


City of Stoughton meal reimbursement indexed to US General Services Administration rates 


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended approval ___ on 06/13/2023 
                                                             


 
Fiscal Impact:   2023 daily maximum increased by $19 for in-state 


 
File Number: 


 
R-xxx-2023 Date 06/27/23  


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, the State of Wisconsin set the maximum permitted amounts for individual 
meals in-state, including tax, tip, and delivery fees at $8 for breakfast, $10 for lunch and $20 for 
dinner as of 07/01/2013; and, 


 WHEREAS, the State of Wisconsin set the maximum permitted amounts for individual 
meals due to out-of-state travel, including tax, tip, and delivery fees at $10 for breakfast, $15 for 
lunch and $25 for dinner as of 07/01/2013; and, 


 WHEREAS, the Wisconsin Department of Administration Travel Manual dated 
04/10/2020 references the Uniform Travel Schedule Amounts (UTSA), which indicates that the 
above rates from 2013 are still applicable; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton reimburses employees for meals at the rate of $8 for 
breakfast, $10 for lunch, and $20 for dinner since 07/01/2013 with no differentiation between in-
state and out-of-state travel; and, 


 WHEREAS, the US General Services Administration (GSA) publishes annual meal 
reimbursement rates broken down by individual states and further broken down between selected 
counties within each state; and, 


 WHEREAS, the GSA meal reimbursement rates are updated each year and available 
online; and 


 WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends setting the 2023 in-state 
meal reimbursement rate using the GSA meal reimbursement rate for Dane County at $14 for 
breakfast, $16 for lunch and $29 for dinner; and, 


 WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends setting the 2023 out-of-
state meal reimbursement rate based upon the standard rate for that particular state unless the GSA 
meal reimbursement schedule separately lists the county where the dining occurred;  







 


 


 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the in-state meal reimbursement rate shall 
be set to the annual US General Service Administration (GSA) rate for Dane County which is $14 
for breakfast, $16 for lunch and $29 for dinner for calendar year 2023; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the out-of-state meal reimbursement rate shall be 
set to the annual GSA standard rate for that state unless the county is specifically cited within the 
GSA schedules for calendar year 2023; and 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Stoughton meal reimbursement rate shall 
be automatically indexed with the US General Service Administration (GSA) rates for both in-
state and out-of-state meals; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that meal reimbursement shall be considered a taxable 
benefit to the employee unless documentation of overnight travel is provided as per Internal 
Revenue Service rules; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that no meals will be reimbursed without receipts 
provided as per Internal Revenue Service rules for accountable plans; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the cost of alcoholic beverages shall not be 
reimbursed by the City of Stoughton; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that meals may not be paid for using a city provided 
purchasing card (P-card) but rather must be paid for directly by the employee to ensure that all 
Internal Revenue Service rules are complied with; and, 


 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that employees may not collect a daily meal allowance 
but rather must be reimbursed on an individual meal basis. 


Fiscal note:  https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan-book/per-diem-rates 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       








�����������	���
� �����������������������������������


�����	���� ���


!"�#$#%�&'(�)*'+�,-.'/�01(�2*/314/*456789�:�;<=>?6<@789�A5:;BC�DE67F?GH<&(*+-(I�)'/.*4-.*14� J1K4.I� LMNOP1.-Q J14.*4'4.-QR('-S0-/.TR('-S0-/. UK43V )*44'( N43*W'4.-QOXY'4/'/ !*(/.�MU-/.)-I10P(-Z'Q��[\\86@G< ]̂@7_7̀ >6 abc ade adb afg ab ahhifbDEGGFj>68?�k�l7=><6 m7̂F69n7�kl7=><6 agh adh adg afc ab ahoipp57?>9G< q7<6 agh adh adg afc ab ahoipp5>8H7̂F66 5>8H7̂F66 agh adh adg afc ab ahoippr@7<?7E?�l7@6 [\\8>69�jGE7888G=7@>G<9H>@nĜ@9\6=>j>6?E7@69 abc ade adb afg ab ahhifbr@̂E_6G<�D7s qGGE ath adt ado aeh ab abbibpm>9=G<9><�q6889 uG8̂̀ v>7 abc ade adb afg ab ahhifb







��


� ���������	
���������	������
�������
���
�����	�	������	�����	������������������ ��!�!����"������#�	��	���$%&'()*++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++�,�$(-./0111111111++++++11+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++11+++++++++++++++++++1�,�2(-*�3*45.6(5)+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++1�,�7%).5*))�$&(/*))+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++11+++++++++++�8�� 9:'-(0**++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++1+++++11�8�� 9:'-(0**�;2�<%'*&=.)(&+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++11++++++�8�� $&*'>0�?%@.A(&�B7CDE+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++1+++++++11�F�� G(5H)A>A*�9:'-(0**++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++1+++++++++11�F�I(J�?.@K�L&*>65M�>5�9N'*5)*�2*'(&A+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++11+++++++++11�O�I(J�?.@K�?''&(=.5M�>5�9N'*5)*�2*'(&A+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++11+++++++11�PQ�I(J�?.@K�R'@>65M�9N'*5)*�2*'(&A�?//(%565M�3>A*)++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++111++1�PP�I(J�?.@K�?@@.5M�S>N�$*5>-A0�T.5*)++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++11P,��9N'*5)*�S0'*�2*U%.&*:*5A)�B)(&A*@�>-'V>J*6/>--0E++++++++1++++++++++++++++++++++++++++111�PF�� B?H7E�?SD�C**)��W���7%)X�<%''-.*)Y$%&/V>)*)++++++++1+++++++++++++++++1+++++++++++1+1�PF�� BLH;E�L>&**&�9@%/>6(5�Z�[\[]��W��;.&*@�D(=.5M�C**)̂L_̀a++1+++11++++++++++11++++++++++++11�PO�� B;HTE�;.&*@�D(=.5M�C**)�̂�L_̀a��W��T(@M.5M�b&>A%.6*)++++++++++++++++++++++++1++++++++�Pc�� BTHDE�T(@M.5M�.5�de��W��D*>-)�f%AH(gH<A>A*�G(�f=*&5.MVA+++11++++1++++++++++++++++++++11++1�Ph�� BDH$E�D*>-)�f%AH(gH<A>A*�f=*&5.MVA�H�D(=.5M�<6'*5@HS>N>J-*++1+++++++++++++++11++++++1++1�Pi�� B$H<E�$>&j.5M��W�<*-g�D(=.5M�C**)�̂L_̀a+++++++11++11+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++1111�Pk�� B<HSE�<'*/.>-�D(@*�S&>5)'(&A>6(5��W��S&>.5�++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++111,Q��������BSHlE�S&>=*-�e5/.@*5A>-)�W��l*V./-*�2*5A>-++++++++++++++++++++1+++++++++++++++++++111�,P�?@@.6(5>-�2*)(%&/*)+++++++++++++++++++++11+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++11�,P�C&*U%*5A-0�?)j*@�m%*)6(5)++++++++++++++++11++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++11�,P�


������	
��������"��
����"n��o����p��n�����	����p��n����������	��������������q�������������������������������������������������	����r���p
�p�����
	������ s��t���������
��	����p����	������	�n�p�������	��p�����
�����	��	����������������	���p����p�������







���


������	��
���� ���������������������������� ��	������������������������� ���������������	� �������� ��������!��"�����#�� �� �����$�%� &'(')�*+�,-./,0,�)-*'1�/2�3456�72+289/:;-0<''=�>-0<'1?-�-2@�&-AB/2'�C+02D'1E�� %� F-*'1�+(�5*-G� %� H+B-D+2�%� I0,J')�+(�I/K?*1�� %� L)/K/2-:�&'B'/M*�%� N(�B+2(')'2B'=�B+MG�+(�-K'2@-�%� O01DPB-D+2�(+)�'.AB''@/2K�,-./,0,�#�� �� �Q�"R	�����$� %� &'(')�*+�,-./,0,�)-*'1�/2�3456�� %� F-*'1�+(�5*-G� %� H+B-D+2�%� I0,J')�+(�I/K?*1� %� L)/K/2-:�&'B'/M*�%� N(�B+2(')'2B'=�B+MG�+(�-K'2@-�%� FL6�',M:+G''1�L0*8+(85*-*'�4)-S':�60A*?+)/T-D+2�%� O01DPB-D+2�(+)�'.AB''@/2K�,-./,0,�U���	�V�  ���%� WX�Y-*�)-*'�(+)�'-B?�J-KK'@�,'-:� %� >+)<�Z+0)1� %� H+B-D+2� %� I[6�U���	�V�  ���Q\���� "� %� WX�Y-*�)-*'�(+)�'-B?�J-KK'@�,'-:� %� >+)<�Z+0)1�%� Z+*':�2-,'�]�������-@@)'11� %� H+B-D+2� %� I[6�U���	�$�̂�"�"��_��Q\���� "�%� �̀�,/:'1�-;-G�()+,�Za�B/*G�%� 9'-:1�/2B0))'@�@0)/2K�J01/2'11�*)/M1� %� F'M-)*0)'�D,'�%� &'*0)2�D,'� %� H+B-D+2� %� I[6�U���	�$�̂�"�"��Q\���� "� %� �̀�,/:'1�-;-G�()+,�Za�B/*G�%� 9'-:1�/2B0))'@�@0)/2K�J01/2'11�*)/M1� %� F'M-)*0)'�D,'�%� &'*0)2�D,'�%� Z+*':�2-,'�]��������-@@)'11� %� H+B-D+2� %� I[6�U���	���$�"����������%� 9'-:1�/2B0))'@�@0)/2K�J01/2'11�*)/M1� %� F'M-)*0)'�D,'�%� &'*0)2�D,'� %� H+B-D+2� %� �Q���!������	�����b�L0*8+(85*-*'�60*?+)/T-D+2�(+),�U���	�Q�"̂�ĉ�"�"��_�����Q\���� "� %� �̀�,/:'1�-;-G�()+,�Za�B/*G�%� 9'-:1�/2B0))'@�@0)/2K�J01/2'11�*)/M1� %� F'M-)*0)'�D,'�%� &'*0)2�D,'� %� H+B-D+2� %� �Q���!������	�����b�L0*8+(85*-*'�60*?+)/T-D+2�(+),�


O+J�6/@b�C)'-D2K�-2�d.M'21'�&'M+)*�







F-1 


SECTION F - UNIFORM TRAVEL SCHEDULE AMOUNTS 
 
 


1.00 Definitions 
 


1.01 Airline Receipt 
1.02 Employee 
1.03 Headquarters 
1.04 Headquarters City 
1.05 Lowest Appropriate Airfare 
1.06 Non-Airline Receipt 
1.07 Ridesharing Services 
1.08 Traveler 
1.09 Travel Status 
1.10 Volunteer 


 
2.00 Authority for Travel 


 
2.01 Authorization 
2.02 Appropriateness 


 
3.00 Mode of Transportation 


 
3.01 Air Travel 
3.02 Travel By Train 
3.03 Travel By Bus 
3.04 Taxis, Ridesharing Services, and Airline Shuttles 
3.05 Vehicle Transportation 
3.06 Special Mode Transportation 


 
4.00 Meal Expenses 


 
4.01 Meal Claims 
4.02 Maximum Meal Amounts 
4.03 Meal Receipts 
4.04 Timeframes for Meal Reimbursement 
4.05 Alcoholic Beverages 
4.06 Bottled Water Reimbursement for International Travel 


 
5.00 Hotel and Motel Expenses 


 
5.01 Lodging Claims 
5.02 Maximum Lodging Rates 
5.03 Exceeding the Maximum Lodging Rate 
5.04 Checkout Times and Extended Stays 
5.05 Lodging Receipt Requirement 
5.06 Eligible Facilities 
5.07 Government Discounts 
5.08 Negotiated Rates 


 







Section F – 4.00 
 


F-13 


4.00 Meal Expenses 
 


4.01 Meal Claims 
 


The claim for meals must represent actual, reasonable and necessary expenses for meals, 
subject to the maximums provided in 4.02, below.  Meals included in the cost of lodging 
(e.g., a continental breakfast at a hotel) or registration fees (e.g., a lunch included in a 
conference) are not reimbursable if provided as part of lodging, conference, or registration 
fees.  The appointing authority or designee may grant individual exceptions if the 
employee provides written justification. 
 
 


4.02 Maximum Meal Amounts 
 


(1) Maximum permitted amounts for individual meals in state, including tax and tip (or 
other fees, such as delivery fees), are listed and shall be: 


 
As of July 1, 2013 


Breakfast  $8.00 


Lunch   $10.00 
Dinner   $20.00 


 
(2) Maximum permitted amounts for individual meals due to out-of-state travel, 


including tax and tip (or other fees, such as delivery fees), are listed and shall be: 
 


As of July 1, 2013 


Breakfast  $10.00 
Lunch   $15.00 


Dinner   $25.00 
 


(3)  The maximum allowable tip is 15% of the meal claim.  
 


(4)  On any particular day that an employee is entitled to reimbursement for two or more 
consecutive meals, the employee may exceed the maximum amount for one or more 
meals.  The employee may claim the actual amount spent for each meal as long as 
the total amount claimed for the eligible meals is not greater than the combined 
maximum reimbursement rate for those meals.  Each day is considered separately 
for application of this policy. 


 
(5)  Employees shall be reimbursed a flat rate of $4.00 for each bag meal.  


 
 
4.03 Meal Receipts 


 
Receipts for meals are not required except for the following: 
 







Section F – 4.03 
 


F-14 


(1) Any claim in excess of the schedule in 4.02 of this Section (Section F), must be 
accompanied by a receipt and full explanation of the reasonableness of such 
expense.  To be considered reasonable, a cost must generally be incurred outside the 
control of the individual.  If the employee has a choice in the selection of the 
restaurant or the menu item, the employee is expected to stay within the 
maximums.  When claiming reimbursement for meal expenses while attending a 
conference, employees shall be required to attach a copy of the conference brochure 
to the travel voucher. 


 
(2) If there is a suspected abuse or a consistent pattern of maximum meal 


reimbursement claims is noted on an employee's travel vouchers, the appointing 
authority or designee may require an employee to submit receipts to document the 
amounts claimed on future travel vouchers. 


 
 


4.04 Timeframes for Meal Reimbursement 
 


Reimbursement for meals for employees who are on a day-shift basis (7:45 a.m. - 4:30 
p.m.) will be allowed on trips only on the following conditions: 
 
(1) Breakfast, provided the employee leaves home before 6:00 a.m. 


 
(2) Lunch, provided the employee leaves his or her headquarters city before 10:30 a.m. 


and returns after 2:30 p.m. 
 


(3) Dinner, provided the employee leaves directly from work and returns home or to the 
headquarters city, whichever is earlier, after 7:00 p.m.  


 
The time or time periods specified above, shall be modified to the extent necessary to 
provide equitable treatment to employees whose work schedule requires shift work on 
other than a day shift basis (7:45 a.m. - 4:30 p.m.).  Meal reimbursement maximum limits 
shall be based on the type of meal appropriate to the time of day. 


 
 


4.05 Alcoholic Beverages 
 


The cost of alcoholic beverages is not reimbursable. 
 
 


4.06 Bottled Water Reimbursement for International Travel 
 
Reimbursement will be made for purchased bottled water.  Employees are limited to 
maximum reimbursement of $7.50 per day when in international travel status (outside the 
contiguous U.S.). 





		Meal reimbursement documentation 05-10-2023.pdf

		Travel Manual.pdf

		SECTION F - UNIFORM TRAVEL SCHEDULE AMOUNTS.pdf

		FY 2023 Per Diem Rates for Wisconsin.pdf



		17.pdf






 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Repeal City of Stoughton Interest on Donated Funds Policy 


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended approval ___ on 06/13/2023 
                                                             


 
Fiscal Impact:   None 


 
File Number: 


 
R-xxx-2023 Date 06/27/23  


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton adopted the attached Interest on Donated Funds Policy 
on December 14, 1999; and, 


 WHEREAS, the policy has not been updated to reflect governmental accounting standards 
that the City implemented in calendar year 2011; and, 


 WHEREAS, the policy is unclear as to the interest rate and other methodology that should 
be used for calculating interest earnings; and, 


 WHEREAS, the policy regarding multi-year projects is only applicable to the Opera 
House as written; and, 


 WHEREAS, the current City practice is to allocate monthly interest earnings to each fund 
based upon the fund’s share of pooled cash and investments; and, 


 WHEREAS, unspent donation proceeds accounted for outside of the General Fund are 
automatically included in the calculations for interest earnings allocations; and, 


 WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends the repeal of the City of 
Stoughton Interest on Donated Funds Policy, 


 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council hereby repeals the 
City of Stoughton Interest on Donated Funds Policy. 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       








INTEREST ON DONATED FUNDS POLICY 
 


1. Donations are routinely expected to be expended for the purpose designated, within the 
current budget year. 


 
2. Individual donation activities are tracked for amount donated, versus amount spent. 
 


 The amount spent against the amounts received has to be computed in order to 
calculate “net donation balances” referred to in item #3. 


 
3. Net donation balances at year end, exceeding $5,000 but less than $10,000, will have an 


appropriate estimated earnings amount calculated and applied, with the resultant balance 
recorded as a "reserved" portion of City over-all Fund Balance. 


 
 The fund balance term “reserved” was eliminated with GASB Statement No. 54, 


which the City of Stoughton implemented in 2011. 
 Under GASB 54, net donation balances would qualify as restricted funds, but any 


related interest earnings would not be considered as restricted.  Interest earnings 
would be classified as “assigned.” 


 The language of “appropriate estimated earnings amount” is too vague.   
o What is the definition of appropriate?  The metric source for the interest 


rate needs to be defined. 
o In calculation the “net donation balances,” are expenditures based upon 


invoice date, general ledger date or the check issuance date? 
o Is the interest on net donation balances calculated daily, monthly, or 


simply upon the year-end balance? 
 The current practice is that all funds receive a share of interest income based 


upon their pro-rata share of pooled cash and investments.  Thus, for donations 
recorded in other funds besides the General Fund, those “net donation balances” 
are already included in interest calculations. 


 
4. Ongoing donation activities which have been approved for a multi-year project, (i.e., 


Opera House), and exceed $10,000 in net balance, will be tracked monthly and have 
interest earnings calculated and applied monthly based on the month's net activity. 


 
 The usage of i.e. (that is) means that this section would only apply to the multi-


year project for the Opera House.  The correct language would be e.g. (for 
example) if the intent was for all multi-year projects. 


 While this section is specific on monthly tracking, it does not define: 
o What metric source for the interest rate should be used 
o In calculation the “net donation balances,” are expenditures based upon 


invoice date, general ledger date or check issuance date? 
 What happens when these activities begin with balances over $10,000 but then 


fall into the $5,000 to $10,000 category?   
 The current practice is that all funds receive a share of interest income based 


upon their pro-rata share of pooled cash and investments.  Thus, for donations 
recorded in other funds besides the General Fund, those “net donation balances” 
are already included in interest calculations. 


 







5. Minor donation activities, less than $5,000 net, are expected to be expended and will not 
earn interest. 


 
APPROVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL: December 14, 1999 
S:\Clerks Office\Policies Procedures and Emergency Plans\INTEREST.docx 
S:\Clerks Office\Policies Procedures and Emergency Plans\INTEREST.pdf 
LASERFICHE:\Stoughton\Policies Procedures and Emergency Plans\Interest 








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amend 2023 adopted budget for auto license plate recognition cameras 


Committee 
Action: 


Finance Committee recommended approval ___ on 06/13/2023 
TIME SENSITIVE       


Fiscal Impact:   Increased expenditures of $2.345 and reduced bond proceeds by 
$20,345


File Number: 
 
R-95-2023 Date 6/13/23 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, the Police Department received two (2) donations from the Bryant 
Foundation totaling $34,400 during calendar year 2022: and, 


WHEREAS, a total of $22,690.32 from the donations were unspent at December 31, 2022; 
and, 


WHEREAS, the general ledger at December 31, 2022 reflected the above unspent 
donations within A/C 100-00000-39620 Fund Balance Restricted – Police; and, 


WHEREAS, the vendor invoiced the City of Stoughton Police Department on December 
30, 2022 for $27,345 for two (2) auto license plate recognition cameras but the purchase was never 
recorded in the general ledger in either 2022 or 2023; and, 


WHEREAS, the 2023 adopted budget included $25,000 for an automatic license plate 
recognition fixed camera funded by $25,000 in bond proceeds in the Capital Improvement Plan; 
and; 


WHEREAS, the Chief of Police has requested that the remaining Bryant Foundation 
donation of $22,690.32 be used to pay for the above invoice with the remaining balance coming 
from bond proceeds; and, 


WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller has indicated this would require a 
transfer from the Fund Balance Restricted – Police account to the Capital Outlay Fund along with 
increased expenditures in the Capital Outlay Fund; 


THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the 2023 adopted budget be amended to transfer 
$2,345 from the General Fund to the Capital Projects fund; and, 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the adopted 2023 budget be to increase capital 
expenditures in the Capital Outlay Fund by $2,345 as indicated in the chart below: and, 







 


 


 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the total expenditures for the adopted budget are 
increased by $25,035 as indicated in the chart below: 


Account Account


Number Description Increase Decrease Increase


Capital Projects Fund


410-52100-49120 Note proceeds (20,345)     


410-52100-49210 Transfer in - General Fund 22,690$     


410-52100-50810-2306900Auto license plate recognition camera 2,345$       


General Fund


100-88888-49920 Fund balance applied - transfers 22,690$     


100-88888-50930 Transfer to other funds 22,690$     


Net totals 25,035$     $25,035


ExpensesRevenues


 


Budget amendments require approval by eight (8) members elected [Wis Stat. §65.90(5)(ar)]. 


  


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       












1


Dave Ehlinger


From: Dan Jenks
Sent: Tuesday, May 30, 2023 12:39 PM
To: Dave Ehlinger
Subject: Baycom Bill
Attachments: baycom.bill.pdf


Dave, 
 
The bill is dated from last year. 
 
Daniel Jenks 
Chief of Police 
Stoughton Police Department 
321 S. Fourth Street 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
djenks@cityofstoughton.com (new email address) 
608-873-3374 24 Hour Dispatch 
608-646-0472  Direct Line 
608-719-8141 Cell 
 







05/30/2023                               REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY                                         
                                                     PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2023                                                     
                                                  % Fiscal Year Completed: 100.00                                                  


2023 2023 YTD BALANCE ACTIVITY FOR AVAILABLE
ORIGINAL Amended   12/31/2023 MONTH 12/31/23 BALANCE


GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET Budget NORM (ABNORM) INCR (DECR) NORM (ABNORM)


Fund 410 - CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND
Dept 52100 - POLICE DEPT 
Account Type: Revenue
410-52100-43799 CAPITAL GRANTS 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00
410-52100-49120 NOTE PROCEEDS 469,035.00 469,035.00 0.00 0.00 469,035.00
Total Revenue: 494,035.00 494,035.00 0.00 0.00 494,035.00


Account Type: Expenditure
410-52100-50810-23065000 SQUAD CAR LAPTOPS REPLACEMENT (2) 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,487.98 0.00 (487.98)
410-52100-50810-23066000 BOLOWRAP LESS LETHAL DEVICES (QTY 4) 5,600.00 5,600.00 0.00 0.00 5,600.00
410-52100-50810-23067000 COMMUNITY INTERFACE CAMERAS 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00
410-52100-50810-23068000 DIGITAL FORENSIC COMPUTER HARDWARE 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00
410-52100-50810-23069000 AUTO LICENSE PLAT RECOGNITION CAMER 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00
410-52100-50810-23070000 PORTABLE RADIOS (QUANTITY 5) 27,500.00 27,500.00 23,940.55 0.00 3,559.45
410-52100-50810-23071000 RADIO SYSTEM UPGRADES POLICE PORTION 273,540.00 273,540.00 0.00 0.00 273,540.00
410-52100-50810-23072000 COMPUTER AIDED DISPATCH COUNTY INTERFACE 5,500.00 5,500.00 0.00 0.00 5,500.00
410-52100-50880-23062000 SQUAD 270 INCL. OUTFITTING & CHANGEOVER 60,661.00 60,661.00 51,896.00 0.00 8,765.00
410-52100-50880-23063000 SQUAD 276 60,234.00 60,234.00 42,471.00 0.00 17,763.00
410-52100-50880-23064000 SQUAD 279 - NEV REPLACEMENT 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00
Total Expenditure: 494,035.00 494,035.00 124,795.53 0.00 369,239.47


Net - Dept 52100 - POLICE DEPT 0.00 0.00 (124,795.53) 0.00 124,795.53


Proposed budget amendment
Increase Decrease Debit Credit


410-52100-49210 Transfer In - General Fund 2,345.00
410-52100-50810-23069000 AUTO LICENSE PLAT RECOGNITION CAMER 2,345.00


100-88888-49920 Fund balance applied - transfers 2,345.00
100-88888-50930 Transfer to Other Fund 2,345.00
100-00000-39620 Fund balance restricted - Police 2,345.00
100-00000-39900 Fund balance unassigned (2,345.00)


Budget Ledger Actual Ledger







Amount
Date JNL Type Description Reference # Debits Credits Balance Available


Fund 100 GENERAL FUND 
01/01/2022  100-00000-48541-70100000 DONATIONS- POLICE DEPT.- BRYANT BEG. BALANCE   0.00
03/01/2022 CR RCPT GRANT 100060058 30,400.00 (30,400.00)
07/26/2022 JE JE RECLASS DONATION REVENUE 8240 30,400.00 0.00
12/31/2022  100-00000-48541-70100000 END BALANCE 30,400.00 30,400.00 0.00


Fund 100 GENERAL FUND 
01/01/2022  100-52100-48541 DONATIONS BRYANT - POLICE DEPT. BEG. BALANCE   0.00
07/26/2022 JE JE RECLASS DONATION REVENUE 8240 30,400.00 (30,400.00) 30,400.00
12/19/2022 CR RCPT BRYANT FOUND. DONATION 100065515 4,000.00 (34,400.00) 4,000.00


Fund 100 GENERAL FUND 
01/01/2022  100-52100-50396 GRANT EXPENDITURES BEG. BALANCE   0.00
03/31/2022 AP INV DIGITAL EVIDENCE SOFTWARE- BRYANT GRANT 9003035513 834.68 834.68 (834.68)
04/28/2022 AP INV ONE YEAR SUBSCRITPTION RENEWAL 03/22-03/ Q-236867-1 4,300.00 5,134.68 (4,300.00)
12/16/2022 AP INV Forensics 4 Renewal subscription and Mai 12/16/2022 1,695.00 6,829.68 (1,695.00)
12/31/2022  100-52100-50396 END BALANCE 6,829.68 0.00 6,829.68


A/C 100-00000-39620 Fund balance restricted - Police 27,570.32
S:\Finance\Audits\2022 Audit\Acct recon and backup 2022\Fund balance reclass entries 2022 04-03-2023.xlsx


Fund 100 GENERAL FUND 
01/01/2023  100-52100-50455 BRYANT EXPENDITURES BEG. BALANCE   0.00
01/27/2023 AP INV UFED Touch2 Subscription - Bryant Founda 01/27/2023 4,880.00 4,880.00 (4,880.00)
12/31/2023  100-52100-50455 END BALANCE 4,880.00 0.00 4,880.00


Remaining balance as of 05/30/2023 22,690.32


City of Stoughton 
Bryant Foundation Donation Recap 


As of May 30, 2023







Amount
Date JNL Type Description Reference # Debits Credits Balance Available


Fund 100 GENERAL FUND 
01/01/2022  100-00000-48541-70100000 DONATIONS- POLICE DEPT.- BRYANT BEG. BALANCE   0.00
03/01/2022 CR RCPT GRANT 100060058 30,400.00 (30,400.00)
07/26/2022 JE JE RECLASS DONATION REVENUE 8240 30,400.00 0.00
12/31/2022  100-00000-48541-70100000 END BALANCE 30,400.00 30,400.00 0.00


Fund 100 GENERAL FUND 
01/01/2022  100-52100-48541 DONATIONS BRYANT - POLICE DEPT. BEG. BALANCE   0.00
07/26/2022 JE JE RECLASS DONATION REVENUE 8240 30,400.00 (30,400.00) 30,400.00
12/19/2022 CR RCPT BRYANT FOUND. DONATION 100065515 4,000.00 (34,400.00) 4,000.00


Fund 100 GENERAL FUND 
01/01/2022  100-52100-50396 GRANT EXPENDITURES BEG. BALANCE   0.00
03/31/2022 AP INV DIGITAL EVIDENCE SOFTWARE- BRYANT GRANT 9003035513 834.68 834.68 (834.68)
04/28/2022 AP INV ONE YEAR SUBSCRITPTION RENEWAL 03/22-03/ Q-236867-1 4,300.00 5,134.68 (4,300.00)
12/16/2022 AP INV Forensics 4 Renewal subscription and Mai 12/16/2022 1,695.00 6,829.68 (1,695.00)
12/31/2022  100-52100-50396 END BALANCE 6,829.68 0.00 6,829.68


A/C 100-00000-39620 Fund balance restricted - Police 27,570.32
S:\Finance\Audits\2022 Audit\Acct recon and backup 2022\Fund balance reclass entries 2022 04-03-2023.xlsx


Fund 100 GENERAL FUND 
01/01/2023  100-52100-50455 BRYANT EXPENDITURES BEG. BALANCE   0.00
01/27/2023 AP INV UFED Touch2 Subscription - Bryant Founda 01/27/2023 4,880.00 4,880.00 (4,880.00)
12/31/2023  100-52100-50455 END BALANCE 4,880.00 0.00 4,880.00


Remaining balance as of 05/30/2023 22,690.32


City of Stoughton 
Bryant Foundation Donation Recap 


As of May 30, 2023







REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/1Page:06/06/2023 03:52 PM
User: DAVE
DB: Stoughton


PERIOD ENDING 05/31/2023
% Fiscal Year Completed: 41.37


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORM (ABNORM)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 05/31/23


INCR (DECR)


YTD BALANCE
05/31/2023


NORM (ABNORM)
2023


AMENDED BUDGET


2023
ORIGINAL


BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 410 - CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND
Dept 52100 - POLICE DEPT 
Account Type: Revenue


0.00 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 CAPITAL GRANTS410-52100-43799
0.00 469,035.00 0.00 0.00 469,035.00 469,035.00 NOTE PROCEEDS410-52100-49120


0.00 494,035.00 0.00 0.00 494,035.00 494,035.00 Total Revenue:
Account Type: Expenditure


108.13 (487.98)487.98 6,487.98 6,000.00 6,000.00 SQUAD CAR LAPTOPS REPLACEMENT (2)410-52100-50810-23065000
0.00 5,600.00 0.00 0.00 5,600.00 5,600.00 BOLOWRAP LESS LETHAL DEVICES (QTY 4)410-52100-50810-23066000
0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 COMMUNITY INTERFACE CAMERAS 410-52100-50810-23067000
0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 DIGITAL FORENSIC COMPUTER HARDWARE410-52100-50810-23068000
0.00 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 AUTO LICENSE PLAT RECOGNITION CAMER410-52100-50810-23069000


87.06 3,559.45 0.00 23,940.55 27,500.00 27,500.00 PORTABLE RADIOS (QUANTITY 5)410-52100-50810-23070000
0.00 273,540.00 0.00 0.00 273,540.00 273,540.00 RADIO SYSTEM UPGRADES POLICE PORTION410-52100-50810-23071000
0.00 5,500.00 0.00 0.00 5,500.00 5,500.00 COMPUTER AIDED DISPATCH COUNTY INTERFACE410-52100-50810-23072000


85.55 8,765.00 0.00 51,896.00 60,661.00 60,661.00 SQUAD 270 INCL. OUTFITTING & CHANGEOVER410-52100-50880-23062000
70.51 17,763.00 575.00 42,471.00 60,234.00 60,234.00 SQUAD 276410-52100-50880-23063000
0.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 SQUAD 279 - NEV REPLACEMENT410-52100-50880-23064000


25.26 369,239.47 1,062.98 124,795.53 494,035.00 494,035.00 Total Expenditure:


124,795.53 (1,062.98)(124,795.53)0.00 0.00 Net - Dept 52100 - POLICE DEPT 


100.00 124,795.53 (1,062.98)(124,795.53)0.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES


25.26 369,239.47 1,062.98 124,795.53 494,035.00 494,035.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 494,035.00 0.00 0.00 494,035.00 494,035.00 TOTAL REVENUES


Fund 410 - CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND:



dehlinger

Highlight



dehlinger

Highlight





		13a Auto license plate recognition cameras.pdf

		baycom.bill (002).pdf

		Memo Style.pdf

		Book1.pdf

		Bryant Foundation donation recap 05-30-2023.pdf



		Binder1.pdf

		Bryant Foundation donation recap 05-30-2023.pdf

		Document.pdf








  


1. Call to order 
2. Roll call and verification of quorum 
3. Certification and compliance with open meetings law 
4. Public comment 
5. Communications 


a. American Rescue Plan Act update regarding debt ceiling deal 
b. Tru by Hilton delinquent room taxes 


6. Reports 
a. Tax Increment District #5 – Rail Corridor – interim financial statements 05-31-2023 
b. Shared Ride Services audit 2021  
c. Shared Ride Services budget 2023 update 


7. Approval of minutes of May 23, 2023 
8. O-xx-2023 Repeal Ordinance Section 2-583 related to Investment Policy 
9. R-xxx-2023 Amendment to City of Stoughton Investment Policy 
10. R-xxx-2023 Meal reimbursement indexed to US General Service Admin 
11. R-xxx-2023 Repeal City of Stoughton Interest on Donated Funds Policy 
12. R-95-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for auto license plate recognition cameras 


TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 
13. R-96-2023 Agreement to modify boundaries for Tax Increment District No. 6 – Business Park  


       TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 
14. R-97-2023 Authorize contract with Ehlers for STI Holdings TIF request review   


       TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 
15. R-98-2023 Initial remedial actions steps for former Dept of Public Works site 


TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 
16. R-101-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for Opera House women’s restroom expansion 


TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 
17. Future agenda items          


a. June 27, 2023 
i. May 2023 financial reports  


 
OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA  


Notice is hereby given that the Finance Committee of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin will hold a 
regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given below. 


 


 


Meeting of the: 


Date & time: 


 
Finance Committee of the City of Stoughton 
Tuesday, June 13, 2023 at 5:30 p.m. 
 
The meeting of the Finance Committee will be conducted as a hybrid meeting 
In person:  Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building, 321 S. Fourth St.) 
Virtual:  You can attend the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84070656225?pwd=WXVsUWx6ZmFJUDR0U2xTSk1MZHE2dz09 
Meeting ID: 840 7065 6225 Passcode: 858947 
One tap mobile +13126266799,,84070656225#,,,,*858947# US (Chicago)  
 
Members:   Brett Schumacher (Chair), Lisa Reeves (Vice-Chair), Leonard “Ozzie” Doom, Ben Heili, Greg 
Jenson, Mayor Tim Swadley (ex-officio), and David Thomas 
 







ii. Magnolia Springs wetland and woodland restoration plan 
iii. Amendment and extension of real estate lease – Stoughton Utilities 


b. To be determined – Creation and/or modification of city policies 
i. Future treatment of costs eligible for special assessments and related interest rate 


ii. Updates to fund balance policy, including policy specific to K-9 Fund 
iii. Potential revisions of Capital Improvement Plan and Debt Management policy 
iv. Creation of debt collection policy 
v. Update policy regarding city asset disposal  


c. To be determined – Other 
i. Update regarding marketing of ARPA business revolving loan program 


ii. Yahara Riverfront Development developer and property sale agreements 
iii. Municipal Court receivables 
iv. Creation of overlay downtown Tax Incremental District 


18. Adjourn 
 


     Any person wishing to attend the meeting, whom because of a disability, requires special 
accommodation, should contact the Director of Finance’s office at (608) 873-6691 at least 24 hours before 
the scheduled meeting time so appropriate arrangements can be made.  
     In addition, any person wishing to speak or have their comments heard but does not have access to the 
internet should also contact the Director of Finance’s office at the number above at least 24 hours before 
the scheduled meeting so appropriate arrangements can be made.  
 
NOTE:  AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL 
 
 

















TRU BY HILTON NAME:0000004446INVOICE NO:05/01/2023DATE:


AMOUNT PAID


$179.78 TOTAL DUE


***** PLEASE RETURN TOP PORTION WITH PAYMENT  *****


2500 JACKSON STREET 


STOUGHTON, WI 53589


TRU BY HILTON 


Quantity Description Unit Price Amount


INVOICE


DUE DATE: 


DATE INVOICE NO


CUSTOMER NO 0000787


000000444605/01/2023


05/01/2023


207 S FORREST ST


STOUGHTON WI 53589


(608) 873-6677


0.00 


CUT OR TEAR HERE


CITY OF STOUGHTON


179.78 179.78 ROOM TAX 1


CITY OF STOUGHTON


(608) 873-6677


STOUGHTON WI 53589
207 S FORREST ST


$179.78 PAYABLE TO CITY OF STOUGHTON


ALL COST AND EXPENSES INCURRED BY THE CITY IN CONDUCTING SUCH
MAINTENANCE SHALL BE BILLED TO THE PROPERTY OWNER TO BE PAID
WITHIN 30 DAYS.  LATE PAYMENTS WILL BE CHARGED 1.5% INTEREST PER
MONTH.  DELINQUENT BILLINGS NOT PAID BY 11/01/2023 WILL BE PLACED
ON THE NEXT TAX ROLL FOR THE AMOUNT DUE.


The liquor license scheduled to be issued on 07-01-2023 will be withheld until the attached invoice has been paid.
David P. Ehlinger, CPA
Director of Finance/Comptroller







1


Dave Ehlinger


From: Dave Ehlinger
Sent: Monday, May 1, 2023 8:38 AM
To: 'jlehner@slhosp.com'
Cc: Lisa Aide
Subject: Tru by Hilton KPW - 1st quarter 2023 room taxes
Attachments: Tru by Hilton 1st qtr 2023 payment.pdf


Jared, 


Thank you for your recent timely payment of the 1st quarter room taxes (attached).  We appreciate it. 


Unfortunately, there was an error in your calculations.  Please see below. 


Could you please remit the remaining $179.78 to our office? 


Gross Receipts for the quarter 300,913.63  


Receipts from sources other than room rent (3,630.22) 


Rent received from non-transient guests 0.00  


Rents billed directly to government units (41,534.22) 


Taxable room rent 255,749.19  


Tax rate 6.0% 


Tax due to City of Stoughton 15,344.95  


Less payment received (15,165.17) 


Amount owed to City of Stoughton 179.78  


If you have any problems or questions, please feel free to contact me. 


Thanks, 


Dave 


David P. Ehlinger, CPA 
Director of Finance/Comptroller 
City of Stoughton 
207 S. Forrest St. 
Stoughton, WI  53589 
Desk (608) 873-6691 
City Hall (608) 873-6677 
Fax (608) 873-5519 
DEhlinger@cityofstoughton.com ≪< Please note new email address 
www.cityofstoughton.com             ≪< Please note new website URL 









		Document.pdf

		Tru by Hilton delinquent taxes 06-05-2023.pdf

		Memo Style.pdf

		Tru by Hilton 1st qtr 2023 payment.pdf












BALANCE SHEET FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/1Page:06/02/2023 03:04 PM
User: DAVE
DB: Stoughton


Period Ending 05/31/2023


Fund 205 TID #5 FUND


Balance
Current Year
Beg. BalanceDescriptionGL Number


*** Assets ***


0.00158.33ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE205-00000-13010
0.0059,704.61TAXES RECEIVABLE205-00000-13070


0.0059,862.94Total Assets


*** Liabilities ***


0.00139.17ACCOUNTS PAYABLE205-00000-21100
566,710.34586,141.33DUE TO GENERAL FUND205-00000-25100
34,827.7159,704.61DEF INFLOW - PROPERTY TAXES205-00000-26600


601,538.05645,985.11Total Liabilities


*** Fund Balance ***


(586,122.17)(586,122.17)FUND BALANCE UNASSIGNED205-00000-39900


(586,122.17)(586,122.17)Total Fund Balance


(586,122.17)Beginning Fund Balance


(15,415.88)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
(601,538.05)Ending Fund Balance


0.00Total Liabilities And Fund Balance


(due to negative cash)


(deficit balance)







REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/1Page:06/02/2023 03:03 PM
User: DAVE
DB: Stoughton


PERIOD ENDING 05/31/2023
% Fiscal Year Completed: 41.37


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORM (ABNORM)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 05/31/23


INCR (DECR)


YTD BALANCE
05/31/2023


NORM (ABNORM)
2023


AMENDED BUDGET


2023
ORIGINAL


BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 205 - TID #5 FUND
Dept 56400 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Account Type: Revenue


41.4435,154.104,975.3824,876.9060,031.0060,031.00TAX INCREMENTS205-56400-41111
0.000.000.000.000.0039,592.00EXEMPT COMPUTER AID205-56400-43430


101.14(450.38)40,042.3840,042.3839,592.000.00PERSONAL PROPERTY AID205-56400-43431
0.0093,021.000.000.0093,021.0093,021.00FUND BAL APPLIED - TAX LEVY205-56400-49910


33.70127,724.7245,017.7664,919.28192,644.00192,644.00Total Revenue:
Account Type: Expenditure


100.00(337.50)337.50337.500.000.00PROFESSIONAL SERVICES205-56400-50405
15.841,683.170.00316.832,000.002,000.00AUDIT FEES205-56400-50410
205.55(158.33)0.00308.33150.00150.00FILING FEES205-56400-50423
41.67111,121.5015,874.5079,372.50190,494.00190,494.00TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE205-56400-50931


41.70112,308.8416,212.0080,335.16192,644.00192,644.00Total Expenditure:


15,415.8828,805.76(15,415.88)0.000.00Net - Dept 56400 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT


100.0015,415.8828,805.76(15,415.88)0.000.00NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES


41.70112,308.8416,212.0080,335.16192,644.00192,644.00TOTAL EXPENDITURES
33.70127,724.7245,017.7664,919.28192,644.00192,644.00TOTAL REVENUES


Fund 205 - TID #5 FUND:


The 2023 adopted budget assumed an additional decrease in the current deficit of $93,021.


Creation date     01/01/2010
Last date to incur project costs 03/12/2032
Last year to collect increment 2037





		Document.pdf

		rev exp.pdf










X


-$                 


206,153.00$    


206,153.00$    


-$                 


178,417.06$    
(27,735.94)$     
206,153.00$   


N/A
N/A


206,153.00$   


206,153.00$    


178,417.06$    
89,208.53$     


178,417.06$    
206,153.00$    
(27,735.94)$    


-$                


(27,735.94)$     


206,153.00$    


206,153.00$    


-$                 


-$                 


-$                 


(27,735.94)$     


(27,735.94)$     


(27,735.94)$     


-$                 


MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE FEDERAL SHARE CALCULATION (ESTIMATE)


MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE STATE SHARE CALCULATION (ESTIMATE)


ESTIMATED STATE AND FEDERAL PAYMENT ADJUSTMENTS


ENTER "x" IF YOUR AGENCY OPERATES A SHARED-RIDE TAXI SERVICE, EITHER DIRECTLY OR
USING A PRIVATE PROVIDER


SECTION 5307/5311 FEDERAL GRANT AMOUNT


s. 85.20 STATE GRANT AMOUNT


TOTAL s. 85.20 STATE AID PAYMENTS RECEIVED


Federal Funds Limiting Factor #3
Federal Grant Amount


Estimated State Share


Enter data in gray-shaded cells in Rows 10, 12-14, and 16 only.


Wisconsin Department of Transportation


Deficit Distribution Calculation
Based on Reported Expenses & Revenues


For Calendar Year 2021


ESTIMATED MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE STATE AID AMOUNT  (Row 47 above)


ESTIMATED FEDERAL PAYMENT TO AGENCY (WisDOT)


(two payments -- normally issued in May/June and August)


(total reimbursement payments for CY 2021 service ONLY, including any issued in CY 2022)


State Funds Limiting Factor #1
Estimated Deficit
Estimated Federal Share


Non-Federal Share of Deficit


Local Contributions
Five Times Amount of Local Contribution


State Funds Limiting Factor #2 (N.A. for shared-ride taxi services)


State Funds Limiting Factor #3
State Grant Amount


Max. Allowable State Share (lowest of three limiting factors above)


Non-State Share of Deficit


Federal Funds Limiting Factor #2


TOTAL STATE AID PAYMENTS RECEIVED  (Row 14 above)


LOCAL SHARE NET OF FEDERAL/STATE GRANTS


* NOTE *
CALCULATED ADJUSTMENTS ARE ESTIMATES ONLY. WisDOT AUDITS MAY CHANGE FINAL 


EXPENSE & REVENUE FIGURES, WHICH WILL CHANGE ADJUSTMENT RESULTS.


TIER C AGENCIES ONLY: FEDERAL (5311) AID PAYMENTS RECEIVED


FEDERAL (TIER C/5311) AID PAYMENTS RECEIVED  (Row 16 above)


NET PAYMENT TO AGENCY (WisDOT)


ESTIMATED STATE PAYMENT TO AGENCY (WisDOT)


FEDERAL GRANT AMOUNT  (Row 12 above)


ESTIMATED MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE FEDERAL AID AMOUNT  (Row 62 above)


Max. Allowable Federal Share (lowest of three limiting factors above)


Federal Funds Limiting Factor #1
Estimated Deficit


50% of Estimated Deficit


Estimated Deficit








X


-$  


206,153.00$    


206,153.00$    


-$  


178,417.06$    
(27,735.94)$     
206,153.00$   


N/A
N/A


206,153.00$   


206,153.00$    


178,417.06$    
89,208.53$     


178,417.06$    
206,153.00$    
(27,735.94)$    


-$


(27,735.94)$     


206,153.00$    


206,153.00$    


-$  


-$  


-$  


(27,735.94)$     


(27,735.94)$     


(27,735.94)$     


-$  


MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE FEDERAL SHARE CALCULATION (ESTIMATE)


MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE STATE SHARE CALCULATION (ESTIMATE)


ESTIMATED STATE AND FEDERAL PAYMENT ADJUSTMENTS


ENTER "x" IF YOUR AGENCY OPERATES A SHARED-RIDE TAXI SERVICE, EITHER DIRECTLY OR
USING A PRIVATE PROVIDER


SECTION 5307/5311 FEDERAL GRANT AMOUNT


s. 85.20 STATE GRANT AMOUNT


TOTAL s. 85.20 STATE AID PAYMENTS RECEIVED


Federal Funds Limiting Factor #3
Federal Grant Amount


Estimated State Share


Enter data in gray-shaded cells in Rows 10, 12-14, and 16 only.


Wisconsin Department of Transportation


Deficit Distribution Calculation
Based on Reported Expenses & Revenues


For Calendar Year 2021


ESTIMATED MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE STATE AID AMOUNT  (Row 47 above)


ESTIMATED FEDERAL PAYMENT TO AGENCY (WisDOT)


(two payments -- normally issued in May/June and August)


(total reimbursement payments for CY 2021 service ONLY, including any issued in CY 2022)


State Funds Limiting Factor #1
Estimated Deficit
Estimated Federal Share


Non-Federal Share of Deficit


Local Contributions
Five Times Amount of Local Contribution


State Funds Limiting Factor #2 (N.A. for shared-ride taxi services)


State Funds Limiting Factor #3
State Grant Amount


Max. Allowable State Share (lowest of three limiting factors above)


Non-State Share of Deficit


Federal Funds Limiting Factor #2


TOTAL STATE AID PAYMENTS RECEIVED  (Row 14 above)


LOCAL SHARE NET OF FEDERAL/STATE GRANTS


* NOTE *
CALCULATED ADJUSTMENTS ARE ESTIMATES ONLY. WisDOT AUDITS MAY CHANGE FINAL 


EXPENSE & REVENUE FIGURES, WHICH WILL CHANGE ADJUSTMENT RESULTS.


TIER C AGENCIES ONLY: FEDERAL (5311) AID PAYMENTS RECEIVED


FEDERAL (TIER C/5311) AID PAYMENTS RECEIVED  (Row 16 above)


NET PAYMENT TO AGENCY (WisDOT)


ESTIMATED STATE PAYMENT TO AGENCY (WisDOT)


FEDERAL GRANT AMOUNT  (Row 12 above)


ESTIMATED MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE FEDERAL AID AMOUNT  (Row 62 above)


Max. Allowable Federal Share (lowest of three limiting factors above)


Federal Funds Limiting Factor #1
Estimated Deficit


50% of Estimated Deficit


Estimated Deficit


Comments 06/06/2023
A.  Based upon the recommendation from Baker Tilly in prior years, the annual surplus for 2021 was classified as 


unearned revenue.  
B. An additional amount of $139.98 was also moved into unearned revenues for 2021 in error.  This was due to 


COVID-19 supplies being included in the calculation twice.  This amount will be recognized in revenue in 2023.
C. Based upon YTD actual activity for 2023, a similar issue will occur for both 2022 and 2023.
D. The property tax levy for Shared Ride Services will have to increased for 2024.  This could potentially come from 


the additional state shared revenue for Public Works activities, 







06/06/2023                                     GL ACTIVITY REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY                                             
                                     FROM 100-00000-43537-20300000 TO 100-00000-43537-20300000                                  Grant Revenue 206,153.00
                                             TRANSACTIONS FROM 01/01/2021 TO 12/31/2021                                          Fare Revenue 104,521.50


Total revenues 310,674.50
Date JNL Type Description Reference # Debits Credits Balance Grant


Provider charges 282,798.58
Fund 100 GENERAL FUND COVID-19 supplies 139.98
01/01/2021  100-00000-43537-20300000 TAXI GRANT BEG. BALANCE   0.00 Total expenditures 282,938.56
09/14/2021 JE JE REVENUE REALLOCATIONS 7482 51,538.00 (51,538.00) 51,538.00
09/30/2021 CR RCPT 2ND-4TH QTR PUBLIC TRANSIT 100056639 154,615.00 (206,153.00) 154,615.00 Annual Surplus 27,735.94
12/31/2021 JE JE 2021 EXCESS TAXI GRANT REVENUES 7686 27,875.92 (178,277.08) Transfer to unearned 27,875.92
12/31/2021  100-00000-43537-20300000 END BALANCE 27,875.92 206,153.00 (178,277.08) 206,153.00 Variance (139.98)


06/06/2023                                     GL ACTIVITY REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY                                             
                                              FROM 100-51510-50219 TO 100-51510-50219                                           
                                             TRANSACTIONS FROM 01/01/2021 TO 12/31/2021                                          


Date JNL Type Description Reference # Debits Credits Balance Charges Fees Net Variance Percent


Fund 100 GENERAL FUND 
01/01/2021  100-51510-50219 TAXI PROVIDER CHARGES BEG. BALANCE   0.00
02/11/2021 AP INV TAXI SERVICE - JANUARY 2021 23971 17,841.29 17,841.29 25,451.79 7,610.50 17,841.29 0.00 29.9%
03/11/2021 AP INV TAXI SERVICE - FEBRUARY 2021 24080 16,099.01 33,940.30 24,128.51 8,029.50 16,099.01 0.00 33.3%
04/08/2021 AP INV TAXI SERVICE - MARCH 2021 24203 18,062.17 52,002.47 28,171.17 10,109.00 18,062.17 0.00 35.9%
04/23/2021 AP INV MASKS FOR STOUGHTON TRANSIT 04/23/2021 139.98 52,142.45
05/06/2021 AP INV TAXI SERVICE - APRIL 2021 24321 17,454.40 69,596.85 26,313.40 8,859.00 17,454.40 0.00 33.7%
06/10/2021 AP INV TAXI SERVICE - MAY 2021 24507 16,818.25 86,415.10 24,119.25 7,301.00 16,818.25 0.00 30.3%
07/08/2021 AP INV TAXI SERVICE - JUNE 2021 24616 15,484.71 101,899.81 23,489.71 8,005.00 15,484.71 0.00 34.1%
08/05/2021 AP INV TAXI SERVICE - JULY 2021 24731 12,562.80 114,462.61 23,482.30 10,919.50 12,562.80 0.00 46.5%
09/09/2021 AP INV TAXI SERVICE - AUGUST 2021 24904 16,757.39 131,220.00 24,755.89 7,998.50 16,757.39 0.00 32.3%
10/07/2021 AP INV TAXI SERVICE - SEPTEMBER 2021 25032 13,299.19 144,519.19 22,071.69 8,772.50 13,299.19 0.00 39.7%
11/04/2021 AP INV TAXI SERVICE - OCTOBER 2021 25180 13,680.18 158,199.37 21,335.68 7,655.50 13,680.18 0.00 35.9%
12/09/2021 AP INV TAXI SERVICE - NOVEMBER 2021 25331 7,265.02 165,464.39 19,701.02 12,436.00 7,265.02 0.00 63.1%
12/31/2021 AP INV TAXI SERVICE - DECEMBER 2021 25441 12,952.67 178,417.06 19,778.17 6,825.50 12,952.67 0.00 34.5%
12/31/2021  100-51510-50219 END BALANCE 178,417.06 0.00 178,417.06 282,798.58 104,521.50 178,277.08 139.98 37.0%


Masks appear to be included twice







1


Dave Ehlinger


From: Hirshfeld, Steve - DOT <Stephen.Hirshfeld@dot.wi.gov>
Sent: Monday, June 5, 2023 6:09 PM
To: Daoust, Patrick - Other; Ostrander, Julie; Zeman, Brenda - MUN; llaux@cityofbaraboo.com; Larson, 


Kayla M - MUN; mseaman@cityofberlin.wi.gov; Rutkowski, Sara - MUN; Brad Chown; 
SSonnenberg@clintonvillewi.org; Lisa Skar; ASelle@fortatkinsonwi.net; sweihert@fortatkinsonwi.net; 
Copsey, Sarah - MUN; Maahs, Amanda L - MUN; Quest, Melissa - MUN; kdorow@manitowoc.org; 
Kara Ottum; Miller, Jackie - City of Marinette; Brandon Robinson; Amy Krogman; Val Nelson; 
Christensen Robert; Brad Brummond; Brittney Rindy; brindy@cityofmonroe.org; Roehl, Rex - MUN; 
Marie Bannink; Howard Crofoot; Jennifer Becker; Garth Frable; Fuller, Tina M - MUN; Tim Becker; 
wbixby@rhinelanderwi.us; Joyce, Aaron L - MUN; Adam Sonntag; bhieb@rfcity.org; Amy White; Kristi 
McKahan; Kyann Kisling; Greg Smith; jlemke@stevenspoint.com; Talin Scheuermann; 
tcarroll@stevenspoint.com; karity@tomahonline.onmicrosoft.com; Molly Powell; Polhamus, Lori - 
MUN; Megan Dunneisen; Stevens, Mark - MUN; Kasza, Kathryn - MUN; ajenson@cityofwaupaca.org; 
Reif, Stephanie - MUN; terri@cityofwaupun.org; Michelle Kast; Dieter, Karen - MUN; 
tdesorcy@wirapids.org; Timm, Karen; Clark, Jessica; Dux, Kaye; Kernan, Pamella; Mark, Robin; 
Baumann, Joann; BUSCH, PAMELA; awitt@co.dunn.wi.us; Reid, Lori (P) - ADRC of the SW South - 
Grant site; ceastlick@co.grant.wi.gov; Heather Vanoss; marcy.gilbertson@kenoshacounty.org; Handy, 
Charlie - DNR; dconstant@lacrossecounty.org; Ducane, Richard; vrescalante@mitw.org; Pyawasay, 
Gary; kmelasecca@hotmail.com; Melasecca, Karen - Other; dmahoney@ploverwi.gov; Swanson, 
Karen - MUN; dault@ploverwi.gov; Conway, Nichol - MUN; Newman, Barbara A - MUN; Bobier, 
Gene; rrivera@co.walworth.wi.us; mluberda@co.walworth.wi.us; Coy, Emerson; Nicole Reynolds; 
NReynolds2@ldftribe.com; debra.ebben@appleton.org; ronald.mcdonald@appleton.org; 
ThompsonJ@beloitwi.gov; downingt@beloitwi.gov; erothrock@wcwrpc.org; 
tina.deetz@eauclairewi.gov; tom.wagener@eauclairewi.gov; kevin.drunasky@fitchburgwi.gov; 
bill.balke@fitchburgwi.gov; lgilles@fdl.wi.gov; patriciaki@greenbaywi.gov; dholtan@hartford.wi.gov; 
rwojtaskiak@hartford.wi.gov; smithr@ci.janesville.wi.us; nogbuagu@kenosha.org; 
lorentza@cityoflacrosse.org; Daniels, Jeffery - MUN; jschiller@cityofmadison.com; 
mopitz@cityofmiddleton.us; bburns@cityofmiddleton.us; bgadow@cityofmiddleton.us; Houtakker, 
Marc - MUN; Steger, Sabrina M - MUN; stomasik@ci.oshkosh.wi.us; JCollins@ci.oshkosh.wi.us; 
Trevor.Jung@cityofracine.org; dmuench@shorelinemetro.com; Lisa Aide; Dave Ehlinger; 
tveith@cityofsunprairie.com; kvanderkooi@cityofsunprairie.com; mimmerfall@duluthtransit.com; 
cbelden@duluthtransit.com; Lamers, Brian L - MUN; bengelki@waukesha-wi.gov; 
matthew.rosenbloomjones@ci.wausau.wi.us; rosenberga@ci.west-bend.wi.us; 
Anthony.Geiger@milwaukeecountywi.gov; kottum@ozaukeecounty.gov; 
Scott.Schmidt@co.washington.wi.us


Cc: Lange, Kevin V - DOT; Kierzek, Brian - DOT; Ritz, Valentina D - DOT
Subject: CY 2021 Revenue-Expense Report
Attachments: 2021 Transit Service Revenue-Expense form.xlsx


Importance: High


CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking links, 
especially from unknown senders. 


Greetings, 
 
Attached is your CY 2021 revenue-expense form.  I apologize for its late arrival. 
 







2


Using this form, your agency will summarize its public transit service finances for CY 2021.  The form covers operating 
expenses & revenues only, so be sure to exclude all 2021 capital expenses and grant awards when completing it. 
 
Our review of your completed form is Step 1 in the required financial audit of your service, and in limited cases it may 
constitute the entirety of the audit.  So please please please: 


 read the instructions carefully. 
 take care to complete the form fully and accurately before returning it. 
 contact Brian, Kevin or myself with any questions. 


 
As in years past, the form includes three tab: one containing instructions, one for entering line item revenues and 
expenses, and one for entering aid award & payment amounts (for both state & federal grants).  The latter (“Deficit 
Distribution”) will calculate estimated state & federal aid adjustments based on the data entered.  Assuming data are 
entered accurately – and check out during WisDOT’s subsequent audit – these estimates will provide your agency with a 
reasonable idea of any potential payment (from WisDOT) or repayment (to WisDOT) that will be due. 
 
When completing the form, please enter line item revenues & expenses consistent with their placement in your 
agency’s CY 2021 operating project budget/quarterly budget reports.  If you need to place a revenue or expense under a 
different line item for any reason, provide an accompanying note on the form. 
 
Please email me your completed form by Friday, June 23.  Meanwhile, feel free to contact me with any questions about 
completing the form.  (To anticipate one question: yes, we’ll be sending out the CY 2022 form much earlier – probably 
sometime in late July.) 
 
Thanks very much, 
Steve 
 
Steve Hirshfeld, P.E. 
Transit Programs Lead Worker 
Wisconsin Department of Transportation 
4822 Madison Yards Way, 6th Floor South, Madison WI 53707 
608.267.0209 | stephen.hirshfeld@dot.wi.gov 
 





		C-Stoughton 2021 Transit Service Revenue-Expense form.pdf

		Shared Ride Services audit backup file 2021 06-06-2023.pdf

		Memo Style.pdf










05/30/2023                               REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY                                         
                                                     PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2023                                                     
                                                  % Fiscal Year Completed: 100.00                                                  


2023 2023 YTD BALANCE ACTIVITY FOR AVAILABLE Projected
ORIGINAL Amended  12/31/2023 MONTH 12/31/23 BALANCE Surplus


GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET Budget NORM (ABNORM) INCR (DECR) NORM (ABNORM) (Decifcit)


Fund 290 - SHARED RIDE SERVICES Projected amounts based upon 4 months of actual activity
Dept 53520 - SHARED RIDE SERVICE
Account Type: Revenue
290-53520-41110 PROPERTY TAX - OPERATIONS 7,886.00 7,886.00 7,886.00 657.13 0.00 7,886.00
290-53520-43537 TAXI GRANT 246,762.00 246,762.00 0.00 0.00 246,762.00 210,438.00
290-53520-46900 PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES 106,000.00 106,000.00 38,240.00 0.00 67,760.00 114,720.00
290-53520-48110 INTEREST INCOME 0.00 0.00 593.07 0.00 (593.07) 1,779.21
Total Revenue: 360,648.00 360,648.00 46,719.07 657.13 313,928.93 334,823.21


Account Type: Expenditure
290-53520-50219 TAXI PROVIDER CHARGES 360,648.00 360,648.00 127,865.59 0.00 232,782.41 383,596.77
Total Expenditure: 360,648.00 360,648.00 127,865.59 0.00 232,782.41


Net - Dept 53520 - SHARED RIDE SERVICE 0.00 0.00 (81,146.52) 657.13 81,146.52 (48,773.56)


5/30/2023 accrual entry Debit Credit Local investment as per DOT 44,210.00
290-00000-13011 Accounts receivable 210,438.00 Projected increase in local investment 4,563.56 10.3%
290-53520-43537 Taxi Grant (210,438.00)
      As per DOT award 05-26-2023







05/30/2023                                       BALANCE SHEET FOR STOUGHTON CITY                                                  
                                                     Period Ending 12/31/2023                                                      


Current Year
GL Number Description Beg. Balance Balance


Fund 290 - SHARED RIDE SERVICES


*** Assets ***


290-00000-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING 151,468.77 49,161.07
290-00000-13070 TAXES RECEIVABLE 7,886.00 0.00


Total Assets 159,354.77 49,161.07


*** Liabilities ***


290-00000-21100 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 21,161.18 0.00
290-00000-26600 DEF INFLOW - PROPERTY TAXES 7,886.00 0.00
290-00000-28500 UNEARNED REVENUE 130,307.59 130,307.59


Total Liabilities 159,354.77 130,307.59


*** Fund Balance ***


Total Fund Balance 0.00 0.00


Beginning Fund Balance 0.00
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures (81,146.52)
Ending Fund Balance (81,146.52)
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 49,161.07







2023 Wisconsin Large Urban Area Agency (Tier A) Funding Distribution - FINAL - May 26, 2023


Recipient
Projected Operating 


Expenses


Projected 
Farebox 


Revenues


Farebox As 
Pct of 


Expenses
Net Operating 


Deficit
Federal (5307) 


Funding


Federal As 
Pct of 


Expenses
State (s. 85.20) 


Funding


State As 
Pct of 


Expenses
Local 


Investment


Local as 
Pct of 


Expenses
Fed+State 


Funding Pct


Milwaukee County $136,764,583 $27,891,720 20.4% $108,872,863 $24,761,394 18.1% $65,477,800 47.9% $18,633,669 13.6% 65.98%


City of Madison $62,522,463 10,716,334$     17.1% $51,806,129 $10,190,953 16.3% $17,205,400 27.5% $24,409,776 39.0% 43.82%


Tier A Totals $199,287,046 $38,608,054 19.4% $160,678,992 $34,952,347 17.5% $82,683,200 41.5% $43,043,445 21.6% 59.03%


TIER A2


TIER A1


Local investment amounts are estimated based on PTAP application operating budgets. Actual local investments will depend upon actual expenses and revenues.


Operating expenses are calculated as the sum of the recipient's PTAP application operating budget and its Section 5307 direct apportionment amount.







2023 Wisconsin Small Urban Area Agency (Tier B) Funding Distribution - FINAL - May 26, 2023


City of Appleton $10,488,273 $1,654,773 15.8% $8,833,500 $3,448,631 32.9% $2,671,281 25.5% $2,713,588 25.9% 58.35%
City of Beloit $2,092,575 $220,075 10.5% $1,872,500 $837,335 40.0% $383,683 18.3% $651,482 31.1% 58.35%
City of Chippewa Falls $599,367 $156,300 26.1% $443,067 $221,533 37.0% $128,198 21.4% $93,336 15.6% 58.35%
City of Eau Claire $5,703,322 $954,100 16.7% $4,749,222 $2,282,160 40.0% $1,045,731 18.3% $1,421,331 24.9% 58.35%
City of Fitchburg $1,632,499 $219,316 13.4% $1,413,183 $0 0.0% $952,564 58.4% $460,619 28.2% 58.35%
City of Fond du Lac $2,211,381 $277,000 12.5% $1,934,381 $884,875 40.0% $405,467 18.3% $644,039 29.1% 58.35%
City of Green Bay $8,221,244 $1,229,501 15.0% $6,991,743 $2,966,419 36.1% $1,830,681 22.3% $2,194,643 26.7% 58.35%
City of Hartford $222,798 $59,503 26.7% $163,295 $81,648 36.6% $48,355 21.7% $33,292 14.9% 58.35%
City of Janesville $4,066,003 $451,716 11.1% $3,614,287 $1,626,994 40.0% $745,521 18.3% $1,241,772 30.5% 58.35%
City of Kenosha $8,382,209 $1,933,225 23.1% $6,448,984 $3,224,492 38.5% $1,666,531 19.9% $1,557,961 18.6% 58.35%
City of La Crosse $6,786,090 $1,008,390 14.9% $5,777,700 $2,715,425 40.0% $1,244,262 18.3% $1,818,013 26.8% 58.35%
City of Middleton $1,405,764 $276,542 19.7% $1,129,222 $0 0.0% $820,264 58.4% $308,958 22.0% 58.35%
City of Monona $292,476 $21,100 7.2% $271,376 $0 0.0% $170,660 58.4% $100,716 34.4% 58.35%
City of Onalaska $1,012,248 $200,000 19.8% $812,248 $405,047 40.0% $185,600 18.3% $221,601 21.9% 58.35%
City of Oshkosh $6,134,701 $1,058,500 17.3% $5,076,201 $2,454,775 40.0% $1,124,826 18.3% $1,496,600 24.4% 58.35%
City of Racine $10,729,482 $2,468,377 23.0% $8,261,105 $4,130,552 38.5% $2,130,106 19.9% $2,000,447 18.6% 58.35%
City of Sheboygan $4,071,961 $580,200 14.2% $3,491,761 $1,629,378 40.0% $746,613 18.3% $1,115,770 27.4% 58.35%
City of Stoughton $360,648 $106,000 29.4% $254,648 $0 0.0% $210,438 58.3% $44,210 12.3% 58.35%
City of Sun Prairie $1,558,728 $393,819 25.3% $1,164,909 $0 0.0% $909,518 58.4% $255,391 16.4% 58.35%
City of Superior $1,623,686 $71,990 4.4% $1,551,696 $649,711 40.0% $297,711 18.3% $604,274 37.2% 58.35%
City of Verona $992,975 $230,748 23.2% $762,227 $0 0.0% $579,401 58.4% $182,826 18.4% 58.35%
City of Waukesha $8,317,100 $904,758 10.9% $7,412,342 $1,292,446 15.5% $3,560,586 42.8% $2,559,310 30.8% 58.35%
City of Wausau $4,390,113 $289,994 6.6% $4,100,119 $1,756,685 40.0% $804,948 18.3% $1,538,486 35.0% 58.35%
City of West Bend $1,310,837 $440,055 33.6% $870,782 $435,391 33.2% $329,483 25.1% $105,908 8.1% 58.35%
Cnty of Ozaukee $3,283,015 $599,961 18.3% $2,683,054 $890,776 27.1% $1,024,865 31.2% $767,413 23.4% 58.35%
Cnty of Washington $4,015,927 $506,488 12.6% $3,509,439 $1,384,188 34.5% $959,107 23.9% $1,166,144 29.0% 58.35%


Tier B Totals $99,905,422 $16,312,431 16.3% $83,592,991 $33,318,461 33.4% $24,976,400 25.0% $25,298,130 25.3% 58.35%


Local 
Investment


Local as 
Pct of 


Expenses
Fed+State 


Funding Pct


Projected 
Operating 
Expenses


Projected 
Farebox 


Revenues


Farebox 
As Pct of 
Expenses


Net
Operating 


Deficit


Federal
(5307)


Funding


Federal 
As Pct of 
Expenses


State
(s. 85.20)
FundingRecipient


State As 
Pct of 


Expenses


Local investment amounts are estimated based on PTAP application operating budgets. Actual local investments will depend upon actual expenses and revenues. State funding 
is capped by both actual net deficit and published funding percentage.


The City of Waukesha, Ozaukee County, and part of Washington County's federal shares are suballocations of the Milwaukee UZA's FFY 2023 Section 5307 direct apportionment.


Remaining recipient federal funding amounts reflect the Appleton and Green Bay UZAs' Section FFY 2023 5307 direct apportionments and Wisconsin's FFY 2023 5307 Governor's 
apportionment.


The cities of Fitchburg, Middleton, Monona, Stoughton, Sun Prairie, and Verona do not receive suballocations of the Madison's UZA Section 5307 direct apportionments.



dehlinger

Highlight







2023 Wisconsin Rural Area Agency (Tier C) Funding Distribution - FINAL - May 26, 2023


Bay Area Rural Transit Commission $2,207,179 $191,698 8.7% $2,015,481 $1,007,740 45.7% $202,825 9.2% 54.8% $85,172 $1,092,912 49.5% $719,744 32.6% 58.7%
City of Manitowoc $2,592,914 $213,125 8.2% $2,379,789 $1,189,894 45.9% $232,234 9.0% 54.8% $100,056 $1,289,950 49.7% $857,605 33.1% 58.7%
City of Merrill $543,831 $75,300 13.8% $468,531 $234,265 43.1% $64,008 11.8% 54.8% $20,987 $255,252 46.9% $149,271 27.4% 58.7%
City of Platteville $846,221 $151,500 17.9% $694,721 $347,360 41.0% $116,764 13.8% 54.8% $32,656 $380,016 44.9% $197,941 23.4% 58.7%
City of Stevens Point $2,444,590 $305,646 12.5% $2,138,944 $1,069,472 43.7% $271,305 11.1% 54.8% $94,333 $1,163,805 47.6% $703,834 28.8% 58.7%
County of La Crosse $535,836 $35,000 6.5% $500,836 $250,418 46.7% $43,471 8.1% 54.8% $20,679 $271,097 50.6% $186,268 34.8% 58.7%
Dunn County Transit Commission $563,168 $41,612 7.4% $521,556 $260,778 46.3% $48,101 8.5% 54.8% $21,733 $282,511 50.2% $190,944 33.9% 58.7%
Lac du Flambeau Tribe $904,300 $29,550 3.3% $874,750 $437,375 48.4% $58,604 6.5% 54.8% $34,897 $472,272 52.2% $343,874 38.0% 58.7%
Menominee Tribe $2,610,028 $548,632 21.0% $2,061,396 $1,030,698 39.5% $400,817 15.4% 54.8% $100,717 $1,131,415 43.3% $529,164 20.3% 58.7%
Oneida-Vilas Transit Commission $724,744 $51,500 7.1% $673,244 $336,622 46.4% $60,876 8.4% 54.8% $27,968 $364,590 50.3% $247,778 34.2% 58.7%
Rusk County Transit Commission $1,931,319 $493,518 25.6% $1,437,801 $718,900 37.2% $340,365 17.6% 54.8% $74,527 $793,427 41.1% $304,009 15.7% 58.7%
Sawyer Co/LCO Transit Comm $2,091,262 $265,000 12.7% $1,826,262 $913,131 43.7% $233,858 11.2% 54.8% $80,699 $993,830 47.5% $598,574 28.6% 58.7%


City of Baraboo $675,647 $166,220 24.6% $509,427 $254,713 37.7% $115,857 17.1% 54.8% $26,074 $280,787 41.6% $112,783 16.7% 58.7%
City of Beaver Dam $1,336,535 $205,000 15.3% $1,131,535 $565,767 42.3% $167,279 12.5% 54.8% $51,576 $617,343 46.2% $346,913 26.0% 58.7%
City of Berlin $327,411 $57,500 17.6% $269,911 $134,955 41.2% $44,619 13.6% 54.8% $12,636 $147,591 45.1% $77,701 23.7% 58.7%
City of Black River Falls $444,551 $100,000 22.5% $344,551 $172,275 38.8% $71,547 16.1% 54.8% $17,156 $189,431 42.6% $83,573 18.8% 58.7%
City of Edgerton $97,035 $15,000 15.5% $82,035 $41,017 42.3% $12,204 12.6% 54.8% $3,746 $44,763 46.1% $25,068 25.8% 58.7%
City of Fort Atkinson $330,470 $95,500 28.9% $234,970 $117,485 35.6% $63,767 19.3% 54.8% $12,754 $130,239 39.4% $40,964 12.4% 58.7%
City of Jefferson $204,448 $40,500 19.8% $163,948 $81,974 40.1% $30,159 14.8% 54.8% $7,891 $89,865 44.0% $43,924 21.5% 58.7%
City of Lake Mills $129,280 $14,500 11.2% $114,780 $57,390 44.4% $13,516 10.5% 54.8% $4,991 $62,381 48.3% $38,883 30.1% 58.7%
City of Marinette $490,509 $94,000 19.2% $396,509 $198,254 40.4% $70,774 14.4% 54.8% $18,930 $217,184 44.3% $108,551 22.1% 58.7%
City of Marshfield*** $1,174,939 $433,000 36.9% $741,939 $375,980 32.0% $268,436 22.8% 54.8% $45,340 $421,320 35.9% $52,183 4.4% 58.7%
City of Mauston $268,786 $75,000 27.9% $193,786 $96,893 36.0% $50,527 18.8% 54.8% $10,374 $107,267 39.9% $35,992 13.4% 58.7%
City of Medford $205,493 $25,500 12.4% $179,993 $89,996 43.8% $22,710 11.1% 54.8% $7,931 $97,927 47.7% $59,356 28.9% 58.7%
City of Monroe $647,541 $131,000 20.2% $516,541 $258,270 39.9% $96,885 15.0% 54.8% $24,989 $283,259 43.7% $136,397 21.1% 58.7%
City of New Richmond $249,366 $58,000 23.3% $191,366 $95,683 38.4% $41,086 16.5% 54.8% $9,624 $105,307 42.2% $44,973 18.0% 58.7%
City of Portage $1,480,487 $296,000 20.0% $1,184,487 $592,243 40.0% $219,756 14.8% 54.8% $57,130 $649,373 43.9% $315,358 21.3% 58.7%
City of Prairie du Chien $404,276 $109,000 27.0% $295,276 $147,638 36.5% $74,094 18.3% 54.8% $15,602 $163,240 40.4% $57,942 14.3% 58.7%
City of Reedsburg*** $441,386 $213,332 48.3% $228,054 $141,243 32.0% $86,811 19.7% 51.7% $0 $141,243 32.0% $0 0.0% 51.7%
City of Rhinelander*** $782,292 $344,000 44.0% $438,292 $250,333 32.0% $178,728 22.8% 54.8% $9,230 $259,563 33.2% $1 0.0% 56.0%
City of Richland Center*** $346,850 $104,000 30.0% $242,850 $138,740 40.0% $51,496 14.8% 54.8% $13,386 $152,126 43.9% $39,228 11.3% 58.7%
City of Ripon $400,574 $121,000 30.2% $279,574 $139,787 34.9% $79,915 20.0% 54.8% $15,459 $155,246 38.8% $44,413 11.1% 58.7%
City of River Falls $339,330 $48,000 14.1% $291,330 $145,665 42.9% $40,446 11.9% 54.8% $13,096 $158,761 46.8% $92,123 27.1% 58.7%
City of Shawano*** $378,661 $175,000 46.2% $203,661 $121,171 32.0% $82,490 21.8% 53.8% $0 $121,171 32.0% $0 0.0% 53.8%
City of Tomah*** $712,816 $288,000 40.4% $424,816 $228,101 32.0% $162,855 22.8% 54.8% $27,508 $255,609 35.9% $6,352 0.9% 58.7%
City of Viroqua $596,830 $128,000 21.4% $468,830 $234,415 39.3% $92,927 15.6% 54.8% $23,032 $257,447 43.1% $118,456 19.8% 58.7%
City of Watertown*** $934,973 $336,700 36.0% $598,273 $299,191 32.0% $213,611 22.8% 54.8% $36,080 $335,271 35.9% $49,391 5.3% 58.7%
City of Waupaca $615,465 $221,000 35.9% $394,465 $197,232 32.0% $140,330 22.8% 54.8% $23,751 $220,983 35.9% $33,152 5.4% 58.7%
City of Waupun $180,923 $38,500 21.3% $142,423 $71,211 39.4% $28,019 15.5% 54.8% $6,983 $78,194 43.2% $36,210 20.0% 58.7%
City of Whitewater $299,627 $70,000 23.4% $229,627 $114,813 38.3% $49,523 16.5% 54.8% $11,564 $126,377 42.2% $53,727 17.9% 58.7%
City of Wisconsin Rapids $1,084,731 $370,000 34.1% $714,731 $357,365 32.9% $237,574 21.9% 54.8% $41,859 $399,224 36.8% $77,933 7.2% 58.7%
Clintonville Transit Commission $145,668 $12,500 8.6% $133,168 $66,584 45.7% $13,310 9.1% 54.8% $5,623 $72,207 49.6% $47,651 32.7% 58.7%
County of Clark $470,308 $50,101 10.7% $420,207 $210,103 44.7% $47,846 10.2% 54.8% $18,150 $228,253 48.5% $144,108 30.6% 58.7%
County of Door $1,057,218 $115,000 10.9% $942,218 $471,109 44.6% $108,740 10.3% 54.8% $40,797 $511,906 48.4% $321,572 30.4% 58.7%
County of Grant $69,305 $6,400 9.2% $62,905 $31,452 45.4% $6,560 9.5% 54.8% $2,676 $34,128 49.2% $22,217 32.1% 58.7%
County of Kenosha $365,246 $25,567 7.0% $339,679 $169,839 46.5% $30,486 8.3% 54.8% $14,096 $183,935 50.4% $125,258 34.3% 58.7%
County of Walworth $1,833,330 $90,000 4.9% $1,743,330 $871,665 47.5% $133,856 7.3% 54.8% $70,746 $942,411 51.4% $667,063 36.4% 58.7%
Village of Plover*** $304,672 $80,000 26.3% $224,672 $121,868 40.0% $45,235 14.8% 54.8% $11,759 $133,627 43.9% $45,810 15.0% 58.7%
Village of Prairie du Sac*** $171,739 $47,000 27.4% $124,739 $68,695 40.0% $25,498 14.8% 54.8% $6,629 $75,324 43.9% $23,917 13.9% 58.7%


Tier C Totals $37,994,110 $7,201,901 19.0% $30,792,209 $15,527,768 40.9% $5,292,700 13.9% 54.8% $1,413,593 $16,941,361 44.6% $8,558,149 22.5% 58.5%


Federal
ARPA Funding


Total
Federal 
Funding


Total Fed 
As Pct of 
Expenses


Local 
Investment


Local as 
Pct of 


Expenses


Fed+State 
Funding 


Pct
TIER C BUS


TIER C TAXI


State
(85.20) 
Funding


State As 
Pct of 


Expenses


5311+
85.20


PctRecipient


Projected 
Operating 
Expenses


Projected 
Farebox 


Revenues


Farebox 
As Pct of 
Expenses


Net
Operating 


Deficit


Federal 
(5311) 


Funding


Fed (5311)
As Pct of 
Expenses


*** Capital cost of contracting utilized to maximize leverage of federal funds. Agency-specific reimbursement percentages will be reflected in CY 2023 5311 grant agreements.


Recipients listed in italics provide publicly-operated transit services and thus are ineligible for capital cost of contracting.


Local investment estimated based on PTAP application budget.Actual local investment will depend upon actual expenses and revenues. Federal and state funding are capped by both actual net deficit and published funding percentage.


Page 3 of 3







2023 State 85.205 Paratransit Aid Funding Distribution - FINAL - May 26, 2023


Agency Tier 85.205 Amount
Milwaukee County A1 $1,639,346
City of Madison A2 $554,062
City of Appleton B $99,119
City of Beloit B $27,392
City of Eau Claire B $66,471
City of Fond du Lac B $20,373
City of Green Bay B $82,898
City of Janesville B $43,594
City of Kenosha B $88,970
City of La Crosse B $82,172
City of Monona B $2,524
City of Oshkosh B $60,749
City of Racine B $104,836
City of Sheboygan B $47,802
City of Superior B $19,528
City of Waukesha B $90,761
City of Wausau B $41,988
Bay Area Rural Transit Commission C $35,335
City of Manitowoc C $31,138
City of Platteville C $7,649
City of Stevens Point C $23,318
Dunn County Transit Commission C $4,569
Menominee Indian Tribe of Wisconsin C $3,506


$3,178,100







1


Dave Ehlinger


From: DOT Public Transit <public.transit@dot.wi.gov>
Sent: Friday, May 26, 2023 11:33 AM
To: Daoust, Patrick - Other; Esberner, Nicholas - MUN; Ostrander, Julie; Zeman, Brenda - MUN; 


llaux@cityofbaraboo.com; Larson, Kayla M - MUN; mseaman@cityofberlin.wi.gov; Rutkowski, Sara - 
MUN; Brad Chown; SSonnenberg@clintonvillewi.org; Lisa Skar; ASelle@fortatkinsonwi.net; 
sweihert@fortatkinsonwi.net; Copsey, Sarah - MUN; Maahs, Amanda L - MUN; Quest, Melissa - MUN; 
kdorow@manitowoc.org; Miller, Jackie - City of Marinette; Brandon Robinson; Amy Krogman; Val 
Nelson; Christensen Robert; Brad Brummond; Brittney Rindy; brindy@cityofmonroe.org; 
mopitz@cityofmiddleton.us; Roehl, Rex - MUN; Marie Bannink; Howard Crofoot; Roehl, Rex - MUN; 
Jennifer Becker; cfranklin@cityofmadison.com; Garth Frable; Fuller, Tina M - MUN; Tim Becker; 
wbixby@rhinelanderwi.us; Joyce, Aaron L - MUN; Adam Sonntag; bhieb@rfcity.org; r s; Amy White; 
Kristi McKahan; Kyann Kisling; Greg Smith; jlemke@stevenspoint.com; Talin Scheuermann; 
tcarroll@stevenspoint.com; karity@tomahonline.onmicrosoft.com; Molly Powell; Polhamus, Lori - 
MUN; Megan Dunneisen; Stevens, Mark - MUN; Kasza, Kathryn - MUN; ajenson@cityofwaupaca.org; 
Reif, Stephanie - MUN; terri@cityofwaupun.org; Michelle Kast; Dieter, Karen - MUN; 
tdesorcy@wirapids.org; Timm, Karen; Clark, Jessica; Dux, Kaye; Kernan, Pamella; Mark, Robin; 
Baumann, Joann; BUSCH, PAMELA; awitt@co.dunn.wi.us; Reid, Lori (P) - ADRC of the SW South - 
Grant site; ceastlick@co.grant.wi.gov; Heather Vanoss; marcy.gilbertson@kenoshacounty.org; Handy, 
Charlie - DNR; dconstant@lacrossecounty.org; Ducane, Richard; vrescalante@mitw.org; Pyawasay, 
Gary; kmelasecca@hotmail.com; Melasecca, Karen - Other; dmahoney@ploverwi.gov; Swanson, 
Karen - MUN; dault@ploverwi.gov; Conway, Nichol - MUN; Newman, Barbara A - MUN; Bobier, 
Gene; rrivera@co.walworth.wi.us; mluberda@co.walworth.wi.us; Coy, Emerson; Nicole Reynolds; 
NReynolds2@ldftribe.com; debra.ebben@appleton.org; ronald.mcdonald@appleton.org; 
ThompsonJ@beloitwi.gov; downingt@beloitwi.gov; erothrock@wcwrpc.org; 
tina.deetz@eauclairewi.gov; tom.wagener@eauclairewi.gov; kevin.drunasky@fitchburgwi.gov; 
bill.balke@fitchburgwi.gov; lgilles@fdl.wi.gov; patriciaki@greenbaywi.gov; dholtan@hartford.wi.gov; 
rwojtaskiak@hartford.wi.gov; smithr@ci.janesville.wi.us; nogbuagu@kenosha.org; 
lorentza@cityoflacrosse.org; Daniels, Jeffery - MUN; jschiller@cityofmadison.com; 
jstuehrenberg@cityofmadison.com; mopitz@cityofmiddleton.us; bburns@cityofmiddleton.us; 
bgadow@cityofmiddleton.us; Houtakker, Marc - MUN; Steger, Sabrina M - MUN; 
stomasik@ci.oshkosh.wi.us; JCollins@ci.oshkosh.wi.us; Trevor.Jung@cityofracine.org; 
dmuench@shorelinemetro.com; Lisa Aide; Dave Ehlinger; tveith@cityofsunprairie.com; 
kvanderkooi@cityofsunprairie.com; mimmerfall@duluthtransit.com; cbelden@duluthtransit.com; 
Lamers, Brian L - MUN; bengelki@waukesha-wi.gov; matthew.rosenbloomjones@ci.wausau.wi.us; 
rosenberga@ci.west-bend.wi.us; Anthony.Geiger@milwaukeecountywi.gov; 
donna.brownmartin@milwaukeecountywi.gov; kottum@ozaukeecounty.gov; 
ccofta@ozaukeecounty.gov; Tretow, Sandra C - CNTY; Scott.Schmidt@co.washington.wi.us; 
Scott.Schmidt@co.washington.wi.us; David Owens; aaron.joyce@richlandcenterwi.gov; Adam 
Sonntag; Kristi McKahan; Greg Smith; erothrock@wcwrpc.org; dmuench@shorelinemetro.com; 
jlemke@stevenspoint.com; Lisa Aide; tveith@cityofsunprairie.com; mimmerfall@duluthtransit.com; 
mpowell@tomahwi.gov; Lamers, Brian L - MUN; Polhamus, Lori - MUN; Megan Dunneisen; 
bengelki@waukesha-wi.gov; ajenson@cityofwaupaca.org; finance@cityofwaupun.org; 
matthew.rosenbloomjones@ci.wausau.wi.us; rosenberga@ci.west-bend.wi.us; Dieter, Karen - MUN; 
jsarnecki@SEWRPC.org; jkrusc@milwaukee.gov; Brian Engelking; Tom Carroll; Mark, Robin; 
Gantenbein, Natasha; mluberda@co.walworth.wi.us; ceastlick@co.grant.wi.gov; Niesen, Terri; Handy, 
Charlie - DNR; Steger, Sabrina M - MUN; stomasik@ci.oshkosh.wi.us; JCollins@ci.oshkosh.wi.us; 
michael.maierle@cityofracine.org; dmuench@shorelinemetro.com; Lisa Aide; 
jfriedl@ci.stoughton.wi.us; tveith@cityofsunprairie.com; Vander Kooi, Kristin; 
mimmerfall@duluthtransit.com; Christopher Belden


Cc: Ritz, Ian - DOT; Hirshfeld, Steve - DOT; Kierzek, Brian - DOT; Lange, Kevin V - DOT







2


Subject: 2023 Public Transit Funding Distribution
Attachments: CY2023 Funding Distribution - Final 26May2023.pdf


Importance: High


CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking links, 
especially from unknown senders. 


Good morning, 
 
WisDOT is sharing the final 2023 public transit funding award information. This includes award amounts for 
the state Ch. 85.20 Urban Mass Transit Operating Assistance Program, the federal Section 5307 Urbanized 
Area Formula Grants, the federal Section 5311 Formula Grants for Rural Areas, and state Ch. 85.205 
Paratransit Aids program. Please keep a copy of this for your records. 
 
From here, WisDOT will email individual grant agreements to each community next week. You will need to 
review the language in the grant agreement and have the appropriate authorized person (e.g. mayor, city 
administrator, county executive, etc.) sign on behalf of your community before sending back to the 
Department.  
 
WisDOT also intends to make the first installment of the state Ch. 85.20 aid payment and the full Ch. 85.205 
paratransit aid payment by the end of next week. For nearly all transit systems, this will be an electronic 
deposit into your community’s designated banking account. However, some communities still receive paper 
checks which will be processed at the same time by the Department but take a couple extra days to go 
through the mail.  
 
Please emails questions, comments or concerns to public.transit@dot.wi.gov or you can call Kevin Lange (608-
266-2365) and Brian Kierzek (608-261-5695) directly as well. 
 
Regards, 
Ian  
 
Ian Ritz 
Chief, Transit Section 
Wisconsin Department of Transportation 
4822 Madison Yards Way, 6th Floor South 
Madison, WI 53705 
608-266-0189 (office) / 608-347-0889 (cell) 
ian.ritz@dot.wi.gov 





		Book2.pdf

		Book3.pdf

		Binder1.pdf

		CY2023 Funding Distribution - Final 26May2023.pdf

		Memo Style.pdf

















 
 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


To repeal Section 2-583 of the Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Related to the Investment Policy. 


Committee Action:   Utilities Committee recommended approval 4-1 on 05/15/2023 


Finance Committee recommend approval ___ on 06/13/2023   


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O-xx-2023 First Reading: 


Second Reading: 
June 27, 2023 


July 11, 2023 


 


RECITALS 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton codified the City’s Investment Policy under Ordinance 
Section 3.12 in calendar year 1986 and clarified the provision of this ordinance with R-00-21 on 
July 25, 2000; and. 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton amended Ordinance Section 3.12 with O-15-08 on 


06/10/2008; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton further clarified the provision of Ordinance Section 


3.12 with R-51-22 on April 24, 2012; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there have been no further changes to the ordinance or subsequent 


clarifications since 2012 other than the Ordinance Section number has been changed to 2.583; 
and, 


 
WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller has noticed that (a) the current policy 


does not conform to certain sections of the Wisconsin statutes, certain sections of the policy have 
not been followed and (c) certain sections of the policy need to be expanded upon; and, 


 
WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller and City Attorney both agree that there 


is no requirement for the investment policy to be codified; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends the complete rescission of 


Ordinance Section 2.583 – Investment Policy in order to create efficiencies for future revisions to 
the City’s Investment Policy; and, 


 
WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller, City Treasurer and Utilities Finance 


Manager have drafted an updated policy based upon the Best Practices of the Government Finance 
Officers Association (GFOA) and that the updated policy has been reviewed by the City Attorney 
for conformity with the Wisconsin Statutes, 


 
 
 







 
 


 


ORDINANCE 


NOW THEREFORE, The City Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, 
Wisconsin, ordains as follows: 


 
1. Section 2-583 of the Stoughton Code of Ordinances is hereby repealed. 


 
2. This ordinance will take effect immediately after publication or posting pursuant to law. 


 
 
 
The foregoing ordinance was adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton at a 
meeting held on ___________. 


 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
       
Timothy Swadley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Candee Christen, City Clerk 


Posted:      
 
Published:   ____________ 
 
Attest: ____________________ 








�����������	
��� �������������������������������


� ���� !��" 	�	








R  -  21  -  00


RESOLUTION ADOPTING CITY INVESTMENT POLICY


WHEREAS, Ordinance Section 3.12 of the Stoughton Municipal Code outlines
investment standards and requirements of the City of Stoughton and provides certain
authority and restrictions related to the investment of City deposit funds, and


WHEREAS, the Common Council wishes to adopt a more comprehensive investment
policy related to the City’s investment goals and procedures and based upon sound public
investment principles.


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Stoughton Common Council
hereby adopts the attached investment policy which is intended to further clarify the
provisions of Ordinance Section 3.12.


That this Resolution was adopted by the Common Council for the City of Stoughton
this 25th day of July, 2000.


VOTE: APPROVED:


Ayes: 12
________________________________


Noes:  0 Robert E. Barnett, Jr., Mayor
Adopted: 7-25-00


ATTEST:


________________________________
Judy A. Kinning, City Clerk







RESOLUTION # R-21-00
(A further clarification of Ordinance #3.12)


1.0 Policy


It is the policy of the City of Stoughton to invest public funds in a manner which will
provide the highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the
daily cash flow demands of the city and conforming to all state and local statutes and
any bond resolution restrictions governing the investment of public funds.


2.0 Scope


This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the City.  These funds are
accounted for in the City’s Annual Financial Reports, including those of the Stoughton
Electric, Water and Wastewater Utilities.


3.0 Prudence


Investments shall be made with judgement and care—under circumstances then
prevailing—which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the
management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering
the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived.  The
standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the “prudent person”
standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall portfolio.


4.0 Objective


The primary objectives, in priority order, of the City’s investment activities shall be:


4.1 Safety:  Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.
Investments of the city shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure
the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio.


4.2 Liquidity:  The city investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable
the city to meet all operating requirements which might be reasonably
anticipated.


4.3 Return on Investment: The city investment portfolio shall be designed with the
objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and
economic cycles, taking into account the city’s investment risk constraints and
the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio.


5.0 Delegation of Authority


Management responsibility for the investment program is delegated to the City of
Stoughton Director of Finance, who shall establish written procedures for the operation
of the investment program consistent with this investment policy.  Such procedures







shall include explicit delegation of authority to persons responsible for investment
transactions.  No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided
under the terms of this policy and the procedures established by the Director of
Finance.  The Director of Finance shall be responsible for all transactions undertaken
and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate
employees.


6.0 Authorized Financial Dealers and Institutions


The Director of Finance will maintain a list of financial institutions authorized to provide
broker and investment services.  No public deposit shall be made except in a qualified
public depository as established by state laws and as authorized by the city.


Every two years the City will request bids for banking services (for two-year terms)
from qualified local banks.


A current audited financial statement is required to b e on file for each financial
institution and broker/dealer in which the City invests.


7.0 Authorized & Suitable Investments


The City is empowered by Wisconsin State Statutes 66.04(2) & 25.50, to invest in the
following types of securities:


1. Time deposits in any credit union, bank savings bank, trust company or savings
and loan association.


2. Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, VTAE district, village,
town, or school district of the state.


3. Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government.


4. The local government investment pool and Wisconsin Investment Trust.


5. Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second
highest rating category of a nationally recognized rating agency.


6. Securities of an open-end management investment company or investment trust,
subject to various conditions and investment options.


7. Repurchase agreements with public depositories, with certain conditions.







8.0 Collateralization


Collateralization will be required on all demand deposits as well as certificates of
deposit and repurchase agreements.  In order to anticipate market changes and
provide a level of security for all funds, the collateralization level will be one hundred
two percent (102%) of market value of principal and accrued interest.


Collateral will always be held by an independent third party with whom the City has a
current custodial agreement.  A clearly marked evidence of ownership (safekeeping
receipt) must be supplied to the City and retained.


The right of collateral substitution is granted.


9.0 Diversification


The City will diversify its investment by security type and institution.  With the
exception of U.S. Treasury securities and authorized pools, no more than 50% of the
City’s total investment portfolio will be invested in a single security type or with a single
financial institution.


10.0 Maximum Maturities


To the extent possible, the City will attempt to match its investments with anticipated
cash flow requirements.  Unless matched to a specific cash flow, the City will not
directly invest in securities maturing more than 7 years from the date of purchase.


11.0 Internal Control


The Director of Finance shall establish an annual process of independent review by an
external auditor.  This review will provide internal control by assuring compliance with
policies and procedures.


12.0 Reporting


The Director of Finance is charged with the responsibility of including a report on cash
and investment activity and returns monthly to the city council.


13.0 Investment Policy Adoption


This City investment policy shall be adopted by resolution of the City Council.  The
policy may be reviewed periodically and any modifications made thereto must be
approved by the city council.








City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE STOUGTON CITY COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to amend the City of Stoughton Investment Policy


Committee Action: Finance Approved 3-0


Fiscal Impact: None


File Number: R- 51 -2012 Date Introduced: April 24, 2012


WHEREAS, Ordinance Section 3.12 of the Stoughton Municipal Code outlines investment
standards and requirements of the City of Stoughton and provides certain authority and restrictions
related to the investment of City deposit funds, and


WHEREAS, the Common Council wishes to adopt a more comprehensive investment policy
related to the City’s investment goals and procedures and based upon sound public investment
principles.


WHEREAS, your Finance Committee met on March 27, 2012 and April 10, 2012 to consider
the changes to the investment policy and recommends approval of the amended investment policy,


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Stoughton Common Council
hereby adopts the attached investment policy which is intended to further clarify the provisions of
Ordinance Section 3.12.


That this Resolution was adopted by the Common Council for the City of Stoughton the 25th day
of July, 2000 and is amended this 24th day of April, 2012


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
April 10, 2012 – 6:00 p.m.
City Hall, Hall of Fame Room


Present:
Alderpersons Paul Lawrence, Carl Chenoweth and Tim Swadley.


Others Present:
Finance Director Laurie Sullivan, Deputy Treasurer Julie Roberts and Planning Director
Rodney Scheel.


Absent and Excused: Eric Hohol


Absent:


Call to order:
Finance Chair Lawrence called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.


Resolution R-51-12 Authorizing and Directing the Property City Official(s) to
Amend the City of Stoughton Investment Policy:
Finance Director Sullivan reviewed the changes made to the investment policy.
Chenoweth doesn’t like the idea of the Utilities finances being so separate. Chenoweth
also discussed oversight regarding Utility finances and requested this be a future
agenda item. Moved by Chenoweth, seconded by Swadley to recommend Council
approve Resolution R-51-12 authorizing and directing the property City official(s) to
amend the City of Stoughton Investment Policy as presented. Motion carried
unanimously.







R - 21 - 00


RESOLUTION ADOPTING CITY INVESTMENT POLICY


WHEREAS, Ordinance Section 3.12 of the Stoughton Municipal Code outlines
investment standards and requirements of the City of Stoughton and provides certain
authority and restrictions related to the investment of City deposit funds, and


WHEREAS, the Common Council wishes to adopt a more comprehensive investment
policy related to the City’s investment goals and procedures and based upon sound public
investment principles.


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Stoughton Common Council
hereby adopts the attached investment policy which is intended to further clarify the
provisions of Ordinance Section 3.12.


That this Resolution was adopted by the Common Council for the City of Stoughton
this 25th day of July, 2000.


VOTE: APPROVED:


Ayes: 12
________________________________


Noes: 0 Robert E. Barnett, Jr., Mayor
Adopted: 7-25-00


ATTEST:


________________________________
Judy A. Kinning, City Clerk







RESOLUTION # R-21-00 New Resolution # is R-51-12
(A further clarification of Ordinance #3.12)


1.0 Policy


It is the policy of the City of Stoughton to invest public funds in a manner which will
provide the highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the
daily cash flow demands of the city and conforming to all state and local statutes and
any bond resolution restrictions governing the investment of public funds.


2.0 Scope


This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the City. These funds are
accounted for in the City’s Annual Financial Reports, including those of the Stoughton
Electric, Water and Wastewater Utilities.


3.0 Prudence


Investments shall be made with judgement and care—under circumstances then
prevailing—which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the
management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering
the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived. The
standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the “prudent person”
standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall portfolio.


4.0 Objective


The primary objectives, in priority order, of the City’s investment activities shall be:


4.1 Safety: Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.
Investments of the city shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure
the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio.


4.2 Liquidity: The city investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable
the city to meet all operating requirements which might be reasonably
anticipated.


4.3 Return on Investment: The city investment portfolio shall be designed with the
objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and
economic cycles, taking into account the city’s investment risk constraints and
the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio.


5.0 Delegation of Authority


Management responsibility for the investment program is delegated to the City of
Stoughton Director of Finance and Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager,
who shall establish written procedures for the operation of the investment program







consistent with this investment policy. Such procedures shall include explicit
delegation of authority to persons responsible for investment transactions. No person
may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this
policy and the established procedures by the Director of Finance. The Director of
Finance and Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager shall be responsible for
all transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the
activities of subordinate employees.


6.0 Authorized Financial Dealers and Institutions


The Director of Finance will maintain a list of financial institutions authorized to provide
banking and treasury management broker and investment services. No public
deposit shall be made except in a qualified public depository as established by state
laws and as authorized by the city.


Every two years the City will request bids for banking services (for two-year terms)
from qualified local banks.


The Director of Finance and Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager are
empowered to purchase investments from any qualified financial institution to
maintain an investment portfolio that meets the objectives of this policy.


A current audited financial statement is required to be on file for each financial
institution and broker/dealer in which the City invests.
A current audited financial statement is required to be on file for each financial
institution and broker/dealer in which the City invests funds in excess of the
current FDIC limit.


7.0 Authorized & Suitable Investments


The City is empowered by Wisconsin State Statutes 66.04(2) & 25.50, to invest in the
following types of securities:


1. Time deposits in any credit union, bank savings bank, trust company or savings
and loan association.


2. Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, VTAE district, village,
town, or school district of the state.


3. Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government.


4. The local government investment pool and Wisconsin Investment Trust.


5. Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second
highest rating category of a nationally recognized rating agency.







6. Securities of an open-end management investment company or investment trust,
subject to various conditions and investment options.


7. Repurchase agreements with public depositories, with certain conditions.


8.0 Collateralization


Collateralization will be required on all demand deposits as well as certificates of
deposit and repurchase agreements. In order to anticipate market changes and
provide a level of security for all funds, the collateralization level will be one hundred
two percent (102%) of market value of principal and accrued interest.


Collateral will always be held by an independent third party with whom the City has a
current custodial agreement. A clearly marked evidence of ownership (safekeeping
receipt) must be supplied to the City and retained.


The right of collateral substitution is granted.


9.0 Diversification


The City will diversify its investment by security type and institution. With the
exception of U.S. Treasury securities and authorized pools, no more than 50% of the
City’s total investment portfolio will be invested in a single security type or with a single
financial institution.


10.0 Maximum Maturities


To the extent possible, the City will attempt to match its investments with anticipated
cash flow requirements. Unless matched to a specific cash flow, the City will not
directly invest in securities maturing more than 7 years from the date of purchase.


11.0 Internal Control


The Director of Finance shall establish an annual process of independent review by an
external auditor. This review will provide internal control by assuring compliance with
policies and procedures.


12.0 Reporting


The Director of Finance is charged with the responsibility of including a report on cash
and investment activity and returns monthly to the city council.


13.0 Investment Policy Adoption







This City investment policy shall be adopted by resolution of the City Council. The
policy may be reviewed periodically and any modifications made thereto must be
approved by the city council.





		Investment Policy Res.pdf

		investment policy minutes.pdf

		Investment Policy backup.pdf

		Investment Policy Res.pdf

		INVESTMENT POLICY MARKED UP VERSION.pdf








 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amend City of Stoughton Investment Policy 


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended approval ___ on 06/13/2023 
                                                             


 
Fiscal Impact:   None                               


 
File Number: 


 
R-xxx-2023 Date 07/11/23  


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton last clarified the provisions of Ordinance Section 3.12 
Investment Policy with R-52-12 on April 24, 2012; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton ordinance relating to the investment policy was 
subsequently renumbered as Ordinance Section 2.586 Investment Policy; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Common Council repealed Ordinance Section 2.586 
Investment Policy on June 27, 2023 with O-xx-2023; and, 


WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller has noticed that (a) the prior policy did 
not conform to certain sections of the Wisconsin statutes, certain sections of the policy have not 
been followed and (c) certain sections of the policy need to be expanded upon; and, 


 
WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends that the investment policy 


clarification as detailed with R-52-12 on April 24, 2022 be replaced with the attached investment 
policy; and, 


 
WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller, City Treasurer and Utilities Finance 


Manager have drafted the attached policy based upon the Best Practices of the Government 
Finance Officers Association (GFOA) and the policy has been reviewed by the City Attorney for 
conformity with the Wisconsin Statutes, and, 


 
WHEREAS, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met to consider and approve the revised 


City of Stoughton Investment Policy to the City of Stoughton Common Council on May 15, 2023 
by a vote of 4-1; 


 
 
 
 







 


 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the investment policy adopted with R-
52-12 shall be replaced by the attached investment policy. 
 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       








DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, May 15, 2023 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  3 


Stoughton Electric Utility Annual Report filed with the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin:  


Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the Stoughton Electric Utility Annual Report filed with the Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin.  Discussion followed. 


Stoughton Water Utility Annual Report filed with the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin:  Stoughton 


Utilities staff presented and discussed the Stoughton Water Utility Annual Report filed with the Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin.  Discussion followed. 


Authorizing the Partial Release of a Platted Public Utility Easement on Lot 141 of John Nygaard’s Virgin 


Lake Estates (2108 Wood View Dr), recorded as Document No. 5618013, Dane County Registry:  


Stoughton Utilities staff discussed a customer request for a partial release of a platted public utility easement.  


Staff informed the committee that Stoughton Utilities does not have any existing utility infrastructure located in 


the easement and that there were no plans to utilize the easement in the future.  Staff noted that the Dane County 


Registration Document No. 5592538 included on the meeting notice was incorrect and should be Document No. 


5618013.  Staff also noted that following attorney review it was recommended that an illustration of the easement 


to be released should be included in the documentation prior to approval by the Common Council.  Discussion 


followed.   


Motion by Chenoweth, seconded by Hirsch, to authorize the partial release of a platted public utility easement 


on Lot 141 of John Nygaard’s Virgin Lake Estates (2108 Wood View Dr), recorded as Document No. 5618013, 


Dane County Registry, and recommend approval of the partial easement release following the addition of an 


illustration of the easement to be released to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 


5 to 0.   


Wastewater 2022 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR):  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and 


discussed the 2022 CMAR.  Staff informed the committee that annual submittal of an electronic CMAR form 


(eCMAR) is required to be completed no later than June 30.  Staff further informed the committee that there were 


no concerns noted in the CMAR.  Discussion followed.  


Motion by Payton, seconded by Jenson, to approve the 2022 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report and 


recommend the approval and adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council at 


their May 23, 2023 meeting.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0. 


Revisions to the City of Stoughton Investment Policy:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed a 


proposed policy that was drafted by City of Stoughton staff with input and review from Stoughton Utilities staff.  


Staff explained the proposed policy would replace procedures currently specified in the Stoughton code of 


ordinances and how the proposed policy would impact future new investments as well as the information that 


would be presented to the Utilities Committee at upcoming meetings.  Discussion followed.   


Motion by Jenson, seconded by Payton, to approve the revised City of Stoughton Investment Policy and 


recommend approval to the Stoughton Finance Committee and Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried 


4 to 1 with Chenoweth voting No. 


Utilities Committee Future Agenda Items:  Stoughton Utilities staff informed the committee that the annual 


water Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) will be presented at the June meeting.  Committee members 


requested that a comparison of Stoughton Utilities electric rates with the rates of neighboring investor-owned 


utilities be provided at an upcoming meeting, and that a tour of the wastewater treatment facility be offered prior 



bhoops

Highlight







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:   
  


May 9, 2023 


To:    
  


Stoughton Utilities Committee  


From:   Shannon M. Statz 


Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager  


Jill M. Weiss, P.E.  


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:  City of Stoughton Investment Policy Update  


Following a review of the current City of Stoughton Investment Policy by Director of Finance/Comptroller 


Ehlinger, it was determined that the current policy is not in compliance with sections of the Wisconsin 


State Statutes. In addition, some aspects of the policy are not being followed or do not provide enough 


information. Therefore, we are looking to adopt a new policy that addresses these weaknesses and sets 


forth new practices. 


Sections of the policy have been added or amended to comply with state statutes and procedures. Notable 


operational changes include: 


1. This updated policy creates an Investment Team, consisting of the Director of 


Finance/Comptroller, City Treasurer, and Utilities Finance Manager.  The team will be responsible 


for the operation of all investment activities. To make financial investment decisions, there should 


be two of the three members in agreement. 


2. Quarterly, the Investment Team will provide the Finance Committee and Utilities Committee a 


summary report of the City’s/Utility’s investment portfolio holdings. 


3. The Director of Finance/Comptroller and Utilities Finance Manager are granted authority to add 


financial institutions as needed and will notify the Finance Committee within 30 days of said 


action. 


4. The City’s/Utility’s investment advisor will provide an annual report to the Finance Committee 


and Utilities Committee noting the period’s investment activity and recommendation(s) for 


improvement. Stoughton Utilities is not currently working actively with an investment advisor and 


has previously used an advisor as needed when considering new investments. We will most likely 


use the same advisor as City staff.  


We are requesting that the Stoughton Utilities Committee review and approved the revised City of 


Stoughton Investment Policy and recommend approval to the Stoughton Finance Committee and 


Stoughton Common Council.  It is planned to be presented to the Stoughton Finance Committee on June 


13, 2023 and to the Common Council for a first reading on June 27, 2023 









